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May 16, 2018 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and 
Families, to amend an existing agreement with Becket Academy, Inc. dba Becket Family of Services 
(Vendor# 264251 R001}, 633 NH Route 10, Orford, New Hampshire 03777, for the provision of a 
minimum of twelve (12) beds, to sixteen (16) beds statewide, which shall be available for male and 
female youth in a short-term, staff secure, shelter care facility known as Becket Family of Services, in 
an amount not to exceed $3,988, 164, with no change to the completion date or price limitation, 
effective upon date of the Governor and the Executive Council approval through August 31, 2019. This 
is a zero cost amendment. 50% Federal Funds, 50% General Funds. 

EXPLANATION 

The purpose of this request is to allow the Vendor to increase the number of potential 
educational providers being utilized by Becket Family Services in order to increase available 
opportunities and assist in the implementation of those services. Kittery Academy will no longer be the 
sole provider of educational support for Becket Family Services as such allowing for male and female 
youth in this program to access the most appropriate educational option for their specific needs. 
Becket Family Services continue to provide shelter care beds to ensure that court-ordered, short-term 
and staff-secure shelter care services are provided to adolescents. 

As part of its service delivery options, the Division guarantees payment for a cumulative total of 
twelve (12) beds, per day, whether or not those beds are filled. These beds are available for male and 
female youth. Reimbursement will be made on a child per day basis, seven (7) days per week, 365 
days per year. 

Shelter care service provides short-term residential care for adolescents in crisis who are 
awaiting further placement,, evaluation, completion of a services plan, or court action. The youth are 
Children in Need of Services, delinquent, abused, or neglected and have been court-ordered to this 
type of residential placement. Shelter care services are comprised of 24-hour per day residential care, 
with a staff-to-youth supervision ratio of 1 :3 or lower. In this self-contained setting, youth participate in 
school, individual and group therapy and physical/recreational activities. They also receive some 
medical care. 
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Shelter care goals include: providing stability for youth by providing services that emphasize 
structure, ensures safety, and close supervision and containment; improving the youth's behavior 
through an effective behavioral management system based on their individual need; and maintaining 
the youth's connection to their family by facilitating contact between them and introducing concepts 
that promote healthy relationships. 

The youth served are typically in a transitional phase, often being removed from their home for 
the first time while the Division is in the midst of identifying the youth's individual treatment and/or 
rehabilitation needs. Many youth, with proper structure and family support, will return to their homes, 
while others may go onto lengthier residential programs that provide more intensive therapeutic 
services. These services are sometimes used for youth who were in another residential placement and 
are transitioning their way back to home - with shelter care being a less intensive placement than their 
current one, and, therefore, a transitional step to ensure their successful return home. In yet other 
cases, shelter care may be needed for a youth that is transitioning from one residential placement to 
another, after treatment has revealed the need for a different therapeutic approach/residential setting, 
but for whom a bed at the next setting is not yet available. 

The costs associated with the Division's shelter care facilities are identified as either residential, 
educational or a combination thereof. For youth served that are educationally identified as Special 
Education, their respective legally liable school district (local education agency) is responsible for 
payment of the educational costs. The educational costs for youth that are not educationally identified 
as Special Education are the responsibility of the Division. 

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, educational needs of the 
youth served may be limited as such some may not receive adequate educational opportunities. If 
Becket Family Services is not able to expand scope of seryices to include additional educational 
options, students unable to attend classes will not have other available resources to access education. 

Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for any 
performance measure that was not achieved. 

Area served: New Hampshire 

Source of Funds: 50% Federal Funds from Medicaid, and 50% General Funds. 

In the event that the Federal -Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

ZF:lc;t;;S 

Approved by. 

Christine Tappan 
A ociate Commissioner 

k/v~ 
effrey A. Meyers 

Commissioner 

The Departnient of Health and Runion Services' Mission is to join coniniunities and faniilies 
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence. 
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State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Amendment #1 to the Shelter Care Residential Services for Youth in New Hampshire Contract 

This 1st Amendment to the Shelter Care Residential Services for Youth in New Hampshire contract 
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment One") dated this 15th day of March, 2018, is by and between the 
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the 
"State" or "Department") and Becket Academy, Inc. dba, Becket Family of Services (hereinafter referred 
to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at P.O. Box 325, Concord, NH 03301-3857. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council 
on November 22, 2017 (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the 
terms and conditions specified in the Contract· as amended and in consideration of certain sums 
specified; and 

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work and terms 
and conditions of the contract; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope 
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval 
from the Governor and Executive Council; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services to continue to support the delivery of 
educational services for female and male youths in a short-term, staff secured shelter care facility; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions 
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: 

1. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.9.4., Education, to 
read: 

2.9.4 The Contractor shall provide educational services to those students unable to attend 
classes through the educational program in a manner which is agreeable to the Division for 
Children Youth and Families in consultation with the Department of Education 

2. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.9.5., Education, to 
read: 

2.9.5 The contractor shall provide an educational program which has the ability to provide credit 
for students based on work completed. 

3. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.9.6., Education, to 
read: 

2.9.6 The Contractor will appropriately supervise and provide Extended Leaming pursuant to 
Ed 306.02 when appropriate. 

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.9.13., Education to 
read: 

2.9.13 Reserved 

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.9.14., Education to 
read: 

2.9.14 Reserved 

6. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2, Subsection 2.1.5.4 to read: 

2.1 .. 5.4 Education for Non.,JEP eligible youth, $1.66.29 per day for middle school students an.ct 
$196.53 per day for high school students. 

Becket Academy, Inc. dba, Becket Family of Services Amendment #1 
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7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements. 

Becket Academy, Inc. dba, Becket Family of Services Amendment #1 
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executiv.e Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 

DatJ ' 

Christine Ta pa 
Associate Commissioner 

Becket Family of Services 

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature: 

State of0ewt\am.¢h:~ ... , County of Gl"Cl.~ on ':I I lo l 1 Ii" , before the undersigned officer, 
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is 
signed above, and acknowledged thats/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above. 

or Justice of the Peace 

j\)..OJ\0

L -\r._ J ~~"ie_e..- W ~ ':\ 
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace 

My Commission Expires: 
JUANITA J •. BELYEA, Notary Public 

State of New Hampshire 
MY Commission EXPlrtJS August 23, 2022 

Becket Academy, Inc. dba, Becket Family of Services Amendment #1 
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution. 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

\-fJ Jc; //CO 
II Date Name: 

Title: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State 
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting) 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Date Name: 

Title: 

Becket Academy, Inc. dba, Becket Family of Services Amendment #1 
. RFA-2018-DCYF-03-SHELT Page 4 of 4 
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Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

A. Definitions 

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document: 

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, 
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to 
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than 
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable 
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 
Information, " Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security 
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident 
Handling Guide, National lnstttute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 
of Commerce. 

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information 
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public 
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance 
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 
Personally Identifiable Information. 

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by 
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted 
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposttion is governed by 
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to 
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information {Pl), Personal Financial 
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), 
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential iriormation. 

4. "End User'' means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, 
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives 
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy, 
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a 
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of 
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware, 
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or 
consent. Incidents include 1he loss of data through theft or device misplaoement, loss 
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic 

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K 
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized 
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. 

7. "Open Wireless Network'' means any network or segment of a network that is 
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information 
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and 
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open 
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pl, PFI, 
PHI or confidential DHHS data. 

8. "Personal Information" (or "Pl") means information which can be used to distinguish 
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal 
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc., 
alone, or when combined IMth other personal or identifying information which is linked 
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden 
name, etc. 

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the 
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 
160.103. 

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments 
thereto. 

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is 
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information 
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is 
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by 
the American National Standards lnstttute. 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR 

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information 
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not 
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation 
of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a 
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a 
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 
consent or object to the disclosure. 

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional 
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such 
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional 
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. 

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End 
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for 
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. 

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives 
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this 
Contract. 

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA 

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have 
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said 
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. 

. 2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks 
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS 
data. 

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if 
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of 
persons authorized to receive such information. 

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. 

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file 
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit 
Confidential Data. 

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 
mail within the continental U.S.· and when sent to a named individual. 

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit 
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. 

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when 
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. 

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to 
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be 
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be 
transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will 
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of 
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will 
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 
hours). 

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all 
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. 

Ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this 
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any 
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted 
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: 

A. Retention 

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in 
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the Untted 
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of 
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup 
data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in 
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems 
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data 
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a 
FedRAMPIHITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have 
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti­
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a 
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's 
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 
infrastructure. 

B. Disposition 

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its 
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for 
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will 
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster 
recovery operations, When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of 
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program 
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media 
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, 
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines 
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. 
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at 
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department 
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to 
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, 
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly 
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 
secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data 
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 
derivative data or files, as follows: 

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery 
of contracted services. 

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department 
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from 
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the 
media used to store the data o.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). 
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to 
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information 
where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabil~ies are in place to 
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or 
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement 
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a 
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum 
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. 

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable 
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies 
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of 
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be 
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to 
system access being authorized. 

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the 
agreement. 

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System 
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and 
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by 
the Contractor, or the. Department may request the survey be completed when the 
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes. 

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office 
leadership member within the Department. 

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall 
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from 

·' ,. 
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and 
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to 
the breach. 

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the 
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects 
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less 
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to .federal agencies, including, 
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS 
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health 
information and as applicable under State law. 

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and 
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to 
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and 
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements 
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. 
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm 
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and 
procurement information relating to vendors. 

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident 
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and 
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within !Wo 
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a 
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach 
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the 
State of New Hampshire network. 

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this 
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to 
perform their official duties in connection v.ith purposes identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: 

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, 
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS 
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this information at all times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PH I, Pl, or 
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. 

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being 
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to 
receive such information. 
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually 
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is 
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons 
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, 
biometric identifiers, etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any 
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases, 
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when 
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. 

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based 
assessment of the circumstances involved. 

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be 
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. 
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through 
a third party application. 

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS 
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this 
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, 
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data 
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and 
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the 
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence. 

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in 
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification 
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and 
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures, 
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: 

1. Identify Incidents; 

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents; 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; 

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents 
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and 

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K 
DHHS Information 

Security Requirements 
Page 8 of9 

Contractor Initials~ 
Date~~ 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate 
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different 
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation 
measures. 

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as 
applicable, in accordance wtth NH RSA 359:C:20. 

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT 

A. DH HS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues: 

DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues: 

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov 

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues: 

DH HSI nformationSecurityOffice@dhhs .nh .gov 

D. DH HS contact for Breach notifications: 

DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov 
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State of Maine 

Department of the Secretary of State 
1, the Secretary of State of Maine, .. certifY that according to the provisions of the 

Constitution and Laws of the State of Maine, the Department of the Secretary of State is the legal 
custodian of the Great Seal of the State of Maine which is hereunto affixed and of the reports of 
organization, amendment and dissolution of corporations and annual reports filed by the same. 

l further certifY that BECKET ACADEMY, INC., formerly BECKET ACADEMY is a duly 
organized nonprofit corporation without capital {!tock under the laws of the State of Maine and that the 
date of incorporation is July 30, 1999. 

1 f urthei' certifY that said nonprofit corporatiol'! has filed annual reports .due to this 
Department, and "that no action is now.pending by or on behalf of the State of Maine to foifeit the 
charter and that according to the records in the Department of the Secretary of State, said nonprofit 
corporation is a legally existing nonprofit corporation in good standing under the laws of the State of 
Maine atthe present time. 

Authentication: 3663-080 -1-

. In te{ltimony whereof, I have caused·the Great 
Seal of the State of Maine to·be hereunto affixed. 
Given under my hand at- Augusta, Maine, this 

· twenty-eighth day of October 2013. 

Matthew Dunlap 
Secretary pf Stale 

Mon Oct 28 2013 09:09:27 



'' 

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 

I, ~b~""""~i-~~A~. ~-c~~~A--=b...,.,=-oi'~,.-,--~----,------· do hereby certify that: 
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory) 

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Be. c """" -l- A co..cl '--", ":J:.~. 
(Agency Name{ 

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Agency duly held on Ocfo~w 13, 10l1: 
(Date) 

RESOLVED: That the ~P__,<~~=S~i~J.=c.~"'-t~-----------­
(Title of Contract Signatory) 

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to 
execute any_ and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, 
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. 

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of 

the9~"'dayof Mt>.~ ,20.li_. 
(Date Contract Sig ed) 

4
· J '1\.l\Ja~ of~~!a~~~gnatory) is the duly elected __,P,__<_t'-.,S"-"i c!=-'-=e.'-'-1'\-'--j.__~-----­

(Title of Contract Signatory) 

of the Agency. 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

county of GtAf'T ot./ 

" (Signature of the Elected Officer) 
s;, .. v .. + ... .-., 

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 9~1.. day of~· 2018_. 

By lJ,,,v·.i A. c~~\,.-t 
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) 

f the Peace) 

(NOTARY SEAL) 
'· .. -· JlJANIT A J, BEL YEA, No1ary Public 

, · State of New Hampshire 
Commission Expires¥ Commission Expires August 23, 2022 



BECKFAM-01 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DA TE (MM/DDNYYY) 

05/09/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder ls an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 

Kinney Pike Insurance Inc. 
1011 North Main Street, Suite 4 
White River Junction, VT 05001 

INSURED 

Becket Academy, Inc. 
PO Box 325 
Orford, NH 03777 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· 

CONTACT 
.. NAJJl5;·······----·----·····-·---····-------~~----------! 
r,tJg:lf£, Ext)• (802) 295-332_9 ______ ~1 r.~tl'~c·~"=''~' (8_0_2~) _2_95_·_77_0_1_-1 

INSURERE: 

INSURER F: 

REVISION NUMBER· 
THIS rs TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLI Cl ES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOROTHERDOCUMENTWITHRESPECTTOWHICHTHIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREINISSUBJECTTOALLTHETERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

II~~ TYPE OF INSURANCE ~.~.P.h~~ POLICY NUMBER 
POLICY EFF I POLICY EXP LIMITS 

A X ~MMERCJAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

IPHPK1678357 -¥~~~~~~E--
$ 1,000,000 

~ CLA™S·MADE ~ OCClR 07/07/2017 07/07/2018 el!l;MISE_S_(j:a__O:CQ..11'.l"e.~). ___ 
_$ ____ loo,ooo 

~-~~~)'.one P,ersrnl_ $ 5,000 

lest/prof 1/3 
_e.!;.B§Q_~_& AQY .. !rf..l.!JB.i._. 

·;---1-;-000,000 
-

~---3:000,000 
_§EN'L AGGREGATE UMJT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE -1 POLICY D ~~Br [] Loe £8.QP.JJ.m§__:_~P AG§_ 

s ~ nnn nnn 

OTHER: Emp Ben. ~---1.000,ooci 

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY -
_{90MBINE~nSINGLE LIMIT 

E<l.a.c9.9~.ot I 1,000,000 

x ANY AUTO PHPK1678357 07/07/2017 07/07/2018 BODILY INJJRY tPu nersonl $ -
OWNED 

~ 

SCHEDULED 
- AUTOS ONLY 

~ 
AUTOS ~~_yjNJURY (Per_acddenll _$ 

~lf}ffi; ONLY ~a~~~t~ fll ER";8AMAGE 
- ~ 

er accident $ 

' A x UMBRELLA LIAS ~OCCLR EACH OCCURREJiG_E ' 
4,000,000 

-
EXCESS LIAS PHUB591426 07/07/2017 07/07/2018 

AGGREGATE $ 4,000,000 _ CLAIMS-MADE 

OED Ix l RETENTIC»\1$ 10,000 ' B WORKERS COMPENSATION ~~f~TUIE I I ~bl'· AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 
YIN 5101800529 07/07/2017 

07/07/2018 :~:.::::_Eh_QY.E.~ I 500,000 Ati"f PROPRJETOR/PARTNERIEXECUTIVE []] 
~FFICER1MljMBJl1 EXCLUDED? NIA 

-$ 500,000 Mandatory n N ) 
If yes, desaibe under ;--- 500,000 
DESCRIPTION CF OPERATIONS below EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 

A Property Section 

I 

PHPK1678331 07/07/2017 07/07/2018 BlktBldg 19,572,787 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS /VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltlonar Remarks Schedule, m;i be attached If more space Is require@ 
Workers Compensation Statutory Coverage applies in NH, ME & VT. No Excluded 0 icers. Email: marsha.lamarre dhhs.nh.gov 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

State of New Hampshire Department of He81th & 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

Human Services 
129 Pleasant .Street ,' ' 
Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE. 

,.,.-- -:.?----:;::;> 

I ~-:::c 
ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: BECKFAM-01 CH ENDERSON 
------------------

LO C #: _O _____ _ 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1 

AGENCY NAMED INSURED 

<inney Pike Insurance Inc. Becket Academy, Inc. 
PO Box 325 

POLICY NUMBER Orford, NH 037n 

~EE PAGE 1 

CARRIER I. NAIC CODE 
~EE PAGE 1 SEEP 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: SEE PAGE 1 
ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM, 

FORM NUMBER: ACORD 25 FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance 

Additional Named Insured 
Mountain Valley Treatment Cent 

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



Becket Academy/Becket Family of Services 

Mission Statement 

Becket Academy and the Becket Family of Services (Becket) provides an array of youth and family-driven 
solutions to ensure that each child has the support necessary to overcome challenges and move 
forward. We believe that planning must focus on supporting a permanent and sustainable residence at 

home and in the child's community. Permanent solutions come as the result of dynamic and faithfully 
executed plans that address all aspects of a client's life, including intellectual development, mental 
health, physical health, family dynamics, and leisure time. Becket is a proud supporter of the Building 
Bridges Initiative, and operates with the goal of"advancing partnerships among residential and 
community-based service providers, youth, and families to improve lives". 



U BerryDunn 

Family of Services 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

and 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

June 30, 2017 

With Independent Auditor's Report_ 



~~ BerryDLinn 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Boards of Trustees 
Becket Academy, Inc. and Affiliates 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Becket Academy, Inc. and 
Affiliates, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the 
related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of Becket Academy, Inc. and Affiliates as of June 30, 
2017, and the consolidated changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in1he United States of America. " 

Bangor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Charleston, VVV • Phoenix, AZ 
berrydunn."com 



Boards of Trustees 
Becket Academy, Inc. and Affiliates 
Page2 

Other Matter 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating schedules are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position 
and changes in net assets of the individual entities and are not a required part of the consolidated 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

~ h,/MrW'L Jttc.)'1.ed_ f. P~1 LL.t:_ 

Manchester, New Hampshire 
November 14, 2017 



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Assets whose use is limited 

June 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Tuition and fees receivable, net of allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $226,000 

Current portion of notes receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Property and equipment 
Land and land improvements 
Buildings and building improvements 
Leasehold improvements 
Vehicles and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Construction-in-progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net property and equipment 

Other assets 
Replacement reserves 
Notes receivable, net of current portion 

Total other assets 

Total assets 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

-3~ 

7,135,852 
131,833 

5,891, 169 
52,668 

147 465 

13,358.987 

2,697,633 
14,349,177 
2,264,372 
3,941,042 
1,386,386 
1,545,504 

26, 184, 114 
9.045.154 

17,138,960 

7,544 
50 000 

57 544 

30,555,491 

.·' 



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Prepaid tuition 
Estimated third-party payer settlements 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized deferred costs 

Total liabilities 

Unrestricted net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

$ 1,335,000 
896,781 

2,434,557 
203,044 
304,002 

5,173,384 

7,556,972 

12,730,356 

17,825,135 

$ 30,555.491 



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Consolidated Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Changes in unrestricted net assets 
Revenue and support 

Tuition, room and board, and other support, net 
State nutrition program 
Other revenue 

Total revenue and support 

Expenses 
Program expenses 

Education and home life 
Supporting expenses 

General administration 

Total expenses 

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 

Total change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

$ 58,888,986 
157,661 
510.379 

59.557,026 

50,419,217 

5.088,975 

55,508,192 

75 879 

4,124,713 

13,700.422 

$ 17,825,135 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Change in net assets 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating 
activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts 
Decrease (increase) in 

Tuition and fees receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Notes receivable 
Other receivable 

Decrease in 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Prepaid tuition 
Estimated third-party payor settlements 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Decrease in replacement reserve 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Increase in assets whose use is limited 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 
Principal payments on Jong-term borrowings 
Payment of deferred financing costs 

Net cash used by financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Supplemental disclosures 
Noncash investing and financing transactions 

Acquisition of property and equipment with issuance of long-term debt 
to seller's financing company 

$ 4.124,7j3 

1,612,865 
(75,879) 
15,000 

258;756 
100,457 
(58,868) 
349,310 

(94,200) 
(361,651) 
(121,385) 

(20.693) 

5,728.425 

30,321 
388,398 

(3,373,334) 
(64,561) 

(3,019, 176) 

355,000 
(1,357,668) 

(14,273) 

(1,016,941) 

1,692,308 

5,443,544 

$ 7,135,852 

$.====7=26=4=1=2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Nature of Business 

Becket Academy, Inc. and Affiliates (the Organization) provides community-based and residential 
treatment and education services to children, adolescents and young adults through various 
schools and programs collectively known as the Becket Family of Services. 

Becket Academy, Inc. (Becket) is a not-for-profit corporation incorporated under provisions of the 
laws of the State of Maine with. residential programs at locations in Gorham,. Belgrade, Lewiston, 
Auburn and Litchfield, Maine, and Rumney, New Hampshire. Becket operates two region based 
special purpose schools to serve the residents at the programs and community students in need of 
specialized academic services. Becket also operates adult group homes in Maine, Massachusetts 
and New Hampshire. 

The Mountain Valley Treatment Center (MVTC) is a not-for-profit corporation incorporated under 
provisions of the laws of the State of Maine. Becket is its sole member and they are currenUy 
governed by the same Board of Trustees. MVTC provides residential treatment for adolescents 
struggling with anxiety disorders at a location in East Haverhill, New Hampshire. 

Mount Prospect Academy (MPA) is a not-for-profit corporation incorporated under provisions of the 
General Statutes of the State of New Hampshire. MPA has a self-perpetuating Board of Trustees 
completely separate from the Board which governs Becket. Despite the division of control among 
these entities, they continue to be economically reliant on each other. MPA is licensed by the State 
of New Hampshire and operates a residential school in Plymouth, New Hampshire. MPA also 
provides comprehensive in-home and community support services to families in New Hampshire 
and northeastern Massachusetts under the name Project Connect and Solid Foundations. 

Vermont Permanency Initiative (VPI) is a not-for-profit corporation incorporated under provisions of 
the General Statutes of the State of Vermont. VPI operates the New England School for Girls and 
Vermont School for Girls, each a 30 bed residential treatment program for girls operated in 
Bennington, Vermont. VPI also operates Connecticut River Academy, LLC (CRA), a specialized 
day school in Bradford, Vermont, the Becket House at Newbury in Newbury, Vermont, East 
Haverhill Academy in Pike, New Hampshire, the Depot Street program, and the Becket House at 
Campton, in Campton, New Hampshire. VPI offers community based support to youth and families 
in Vermont through the trade name Vermont Support & Stabilization. VPI has a self-perpetuating 
Board of Trustees that is comprised of the same members as MPA, and completely separate from 
the Board which governs Becket and MVTC. Despite the division of control among these various 
entities, they continue to be economically reliant on each other. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the activity of Becket, MPA, MVTC and VPI. All 
material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. 

-6-



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting, have been prepared to focus on the Organization as a whole and to present balances 
and transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The 
Organization displays its activities and net assets in three classes: unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted and permanently restricted. 

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestrfcted net assets unless· use of the related ·assets is 
limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net 
assets. Expirations of temporary restrictions on net assets (that is, situations in which the donor­
imposed stipulated purpose has been accomplished and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) 
are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. The Organization 
had no temporarily or permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2017. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. · 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

All unrestricted, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less are 
considered to be cash equivalents. 

The Organization maintains its cash and certificates of deposit in bank deposit accounts which, at 
times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in 
such accounts. The Organization believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to 
these accounts. 

Assets Whose Use is Limited 

Assets whose use is limited consists of cash and cash equivalents reserved for the Organization's 
self-insurance plans. 

Tuition and Fees Receivable 

Tuition and fees receivable are stated at the amount the Organization expects to collect from 
outstanding balances, net of discounts of $329,932 in 2017 . 

. > 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

The Organization provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to current-year 
earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of 
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after the Organization has used reasonable 
collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to 
accounts receivable. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at the fair market value at the date of 
donation. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred, and betterments 
and assets purchased in excess of $1,000 are considered for capitalization. 

Depreciation of property and equipment is charged against operations using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of these assets, as follows: 

Land improvements 
Buildings and building improvements 
Leasehold improvements 
Vehicles and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 

7-10 
7- 30 
5- 25 
3-5 
2-15 

When assets are sold or disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation and 
amortization are removed from the respective accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included 
in the consolidated statement of activities. 

Replacement Reserves 

Becket has a mortgage note payable to Maine State Housing Authority. This mortgage note 
requires Becket to maintain a replacement reserve fund in a separate account for the purpose of 
providing a cash reserve for future property replacement needs. This restricted amount is 
classified as "replacement reserves" in the consolidated statement of financial position and is 
generally not available for routine operating expenses. 

Deferred Costs 

Certain costs related to long-term debt, such as accountants, attorneys and underwriting fees, are 
capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the lives of the respective debt issues. 
These costs are presented as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related long-term 
debt. In addition, the amortization of the deferred costs is included with interest expense. 

Tuition, Room and Board, and Other Support and Other Changes in Net Assets 

Tuition, room and board, and other support are recorded as increases in unrestricted net assets at 
the time the services are provided. In some circumstances, tuition revenues are received prior to 
the school year and are recorded as a current liability under prepaid tuition. 

- 8 -



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Gains and losses on other assets 
and liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is 
restricted by explicit donor restriction or by law. Expirations of temporary restrictions, if any, on net 
assets by fulfillment of the donor-stipulated purpose or by passage of the stipulated time period 
are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. 

Additionally, the Organization has contractual arrangements with the Maine Department of Health 
and Human Services (DHHS) to render services to qualifying residents under certain cost-based 
and fee-for-service reimbursement programs which may result in the Organization receiving 
payments for such services which differ from the standard charges. The Organization records its 
revenue at the net amount expected to be paid by DHHS based upon established rates. 

Income Taxes 

The entities comprising the Organization are not-for-profit corporations as described in Section 
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code), whereby only unrelated business income, as 
defined by Section 512(a)(1) of the Code, is subject to federal income tax. 

Allocation of Costs 

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been 
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. 

Advertising 

The Organization follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred. 
Advertising expense totaled $330,069 in 2017. 

2. Significant Concentrations and Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 

Approximately 16% of the revenue recorded during 2017 was from beneficiaries of the New 
Hampshire Medicaid program. 

Approximately 11 % of the revenue recorded during 2017 was from the Vermont Department of 
Education and various school districts located in Maine, ·New Hampshire, Vermont, 
Massachusetts, New York and Connecticut. 

Approximately 20% of the revenue recorded during 2017 was from the Massachusetts Department 
of Mental Health and Developmental Services. 

- 9 -



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Approximately 19% of the revenue recorded during 2017 was from beneficiaries of the Maine 
Medicaid (MaineCare) program. Under this program, the provider is reimbursed for the care of 
qualified residents at specified interim rates during the year. Differences between these interim 
contractual rates and the "cost" of this care, as defined by the Principles of Reimbursement (the 
Principles) governing the respective programs, are determined and settled on a retroactive basis. 
Laws and regulations governing the MaineCare program are extremely complex and subject to 
interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will 
change by a material amount in the near term. 

The consolidated financial statements reflect estimated settlements due under the MaineCare 
program. Although management expects to receive the estimated amounts, different 
interpretations of the governing Principles by regulatory authorities could result in subsequent 
adjustments. Settlements do not become final until cost reports are audited and approved by 
DHHS. Differences between estimated and actual settlements are recorded as contractual 
adjustments in the year of final determination. 

The estimated balance due to MaineCare was $304,002 as of June 30, 2017 relating to balances 
from prior years currently under appeal. 

Due to the concentration of residents who receive benefits from the various state Medicaid 
reimbursement programs, the Organization is highly dependent upon regulatory authorities 
establishing reimbursement rates that are adequate to sustain the Organization's operations. 

3. Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable consists of the following: 

Becket Academy, Inc. 

Note receivable from an employee bearing interest of 5% annually. 
Payments of $25,000, plus accrued interest, on June 30, 
annually through 2020. If the employee remains employed by 
Becket on the day such payments are due, the payment amount 
shall be forgiven. 

Mountain Valley Treatment Center 

Note receivable from an employee bearing interest of 4% annually. 
Due in September 2017. 

Total notes receivable 

Less current portion 

Notes receivable, net of current portion 
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$ 75,000 

27668 

102,668 

(52,668) 

50,000 



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

4. Lines of Credit 

Becket holds a line of credit agreement with Key Bank under which Key Bank agrees to advance 
up to $250,000 to Becket upon request. Monies advanced accrue interest at the rate of 5.25%. 
There was no balance outstanding as of June 30, 2017. The line of credit is collateralized by a 
security interest in all assets of Becket. 

VPI holds a line. of credit agreement with Bar Harbor Bank & Trust under which Bar Harbor Bank & 
Trust agrees to advance up to $250,000 to VPI upon request. Monies advanced accrue interest at 
the rate of 5.50%. There was no balance outstanding as of June 30, 2017. 

5. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following: 

Becket Academy, Inc. 

Note payable to Maine State Housing Authority, due in monthly 
installments of $2,661, including interest at 7.0%, through April 
2032; collateralized by land, buildings and equipment in Litchfield, 
Maine. 

Note payable to Maine State Housing Authority, due in monthly 
installments of $1,830, including interest at 7.0%, through October 
2029; collateralized by real estate in Lewiston, Maine. 

Note payable to Maine State Housing Authority, due in monthly 
installments of $1,830, including interest at 5.5%, through 
December 2030; collateralized by real estate in Lewiston, Maine 

Note payable to Key Bank, due in monthly installments of $3,608, 
including interest at 3.99%, through October 2017, at which time 
the remaining balance is due in full; collateralized by real estate in 
Belgrade, Maine. 

Note payable to United Bank, due in monthly installments of $2, 178, 
including interest at 4.25%, through February 2023; collateralized 
by certain real estate in Lakeville, Massachusetts. 

Note payable to United Bank, due in monthly installments of $2, 158, 
including interest at 4.25%, through January 2023; collateralized 
by real estate in Springfield, Massachusetts. 

Note payable to Bar Harbor Bank & Trust, due in monthly installments 
of $4,636, including interest at 4.5%, through February 203?; 
collateralized by certain real estate of Becket. 
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$ 283,451 

181,713 

88,620 

494,037 

297,409 

195,780 

103,371 



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Note payable to Coastal Enterprises, Inc., due in monthly installments 
of $4,985, including interest at 6.0%, through March 2023, at which 
time the remaining balance is due in full; collateralized by 
substantially all assets of Becket. 

Note payable to United Bank, due in monthly installments of $2, 158, 
including _interest at 4.25%, thro.ugh March 2023; collateralized by 
real estate in Westminster, Massachusetts. 

Note payable to Coastal Enterprises, Inc., due in monthly installments 
of $5,572, including interest at 6.0%, through February 2024, at 
which time the remaining balance is due in full; collateralized by 
real estate in Auburn and Belgrade, Maine. 

Note payable to Bar Harbor Bank & Trust, due in monthly installments 
of $4,636, including interest at 4.625%, through June 2034; 
collateralized by certain real estate of Becket. 

Note payable to Union Bank, due in monthly installments of $3,079, 
including interest at 4.25%, through September 2019, at which 
time the remaining balance is due in full; collateralized by real 
estate in Bethlehem, New Hampshire. 

Various vehicle notes payable to financial institutions, due in monthly 
installments, including interest, ranging from $291 to $793, totaling 
$19,747.18. Interest rates range from 0% to 9.50%. Maturities 
range from July 2018 through June 2021. The notes are 
collateralized by vehicles. 

Total Becket Academy, Inc. 

Mount Prospect Academy, Inc. 

Note payable to Meredith Village Savings Bank, due in monthly 
installments of $6,294, including interest adjusted annually in April 
to The Wall Street Journal's prime rate plus 1 % (5.25% at June 30, 
2017), through April 2028; collateralized by real estate in 
Plymouth, New Hampshire. 

Note payable to Meredith Village Savings Bank, due in monthly 
installments of $5,392, including interest adjusted annually in April 
to The Wall Street Journal's prime rate plus 1 % (5.25% at June 30, 
2017), through April 2028; collateralized by real estate in 
Plymouth, New Hampshire. 

.·' 
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277,391 

279,815 

365,620 

654,040 

227,275 

233, 106 

3,681,628 

655,337 

589,595 



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

. Note payable to Meredith Village Savings Bank, due in monthly 
installments of $2,827, including interest adjusted annually in April 
to The Wall Street Journal's prime rate plus 1 % (5.25% at June 30, 
2017), through April 2028; collateralized by real estate in Haverhill, 
New Hampshire. 

Note payable to Community Guarantee Savings Bank, due in monthly 
installments of $1,617, including interest at 6.50%, through 
December 2023; collateralized by real estate associated with the 
debt. 

Various vehicle and equipment notes payable to financial institutions, 
payable in monthly installments, including interest, ranging from 
$327 to $677, totaling $7,340. Interest rates range from 0% to 
7.94%. Maturities range from February 2019 through March 2022. 
The notes are collateralized by vehicles and equipment. 

Total Mount Prospect Academy, Inc. 

Mountain Valley Treatment Center 

Note payable to Meredith Village Savings Bank, due in monthly 
installments of $3,884, including interest at 6.25%, through May 
2019, at which time the remaining balance is due in full; 
collateralized by real estate in Plymouth, New Hampshire. 

Various vehicle and equipment notes payable to financial institutions, 
payable in monthly installments, including interest, ranging from 
$393 to $770, totaling $7,358. Interest rates range from 0% to 
4.09%. Maturities range from December 2018 through October 
2021. The notes are collateralized by vehicles and equipment. 

Total Mountain Valley Treatment Center 

Vermont Permanency Initiative, Inc. 

Note payable to Merritt Family, due in monthly installments of $8,835, 
including interest at 7 .0%, through January 2038, at which time the 
remaining balance is due in full; collateralized by land and property 
in Bennington, Vermont. 

Note payable to Woodsville Guaranty Savings Bank, due in monthly 
installments of $5,372, including interest at 6.0%, through August 
2022, at which time the remaining balance is due in full; 
collateralized by real estate in Newbury, Vermont. 
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241,632 

102,370 

285,930 

1 874 864 

193,273 

205,005 

398,278 

1,154,488 

690,037 



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Note payable to William and Carol Bailey, due in monthly installments 
of $1,988, including interest at 6.0%, through August 2019, at 
which time the remaining balance is due in full; collateralized by 
real estate in Newbury, Vermont. 

Note payable to William and Carol Bailey, at an interest rate of 5.0%. 
Interest only payments of $313 are due in monthly installments 
through August 2019.. Principal and interest payments will 
commence September 2019 of $1,415 through September 2024; 
collateralized by real estate in Newbury, Vermont. 

Note payable to Bar Harbor Bank & Trust, at fixed interest rate of 
4.50% through October 2020, and then repriced every five years to 
FHLB, 5-Year Constant Maturity Treasury Rate plus 3.25% every 
five years until maturity. Principal and interest payments of $2,232 
through October 2035; collateralized by properties in Bennington, 
Vermont. 

Note payable to Lake Sunapee Bank, at fixed interest rate of 4.75% 
through May 2022, and then repriced every five years to FHLB, 5-
Year Constant Maturity Treasury Rate plus 3.25% every five years 
until maturity. Principal and interest payments of $1,842 through 
May 2027; collateralized by properties in Bennington, Vermont. 

Various vehicle and equipment notes payable to financial institutions, 
payable in monthly installments, including interest, ranging from 
$303 to $823, totaling $12,000. Interest rates range from 0% to 
12.95%. Maturities range from March 2018 through April 2022 The 
notes are collateralized by vehicles and equipment. 

Total Vermont Permanency Initiative, Inc. 
/ 

Less: Current portion 
Deferred finance costs, net 

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized 
deferred costs 
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138,602 

75,000 

333,795 

283,570 

461,535 

3,137,027 

9,091,797 
1,335,000 

199,825 

$ 7,556,972 



BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
Thereafter 

$ 1,335,000 
948,000 
978,000 
616,000 
503,000 

4,711,791 

$ 9,091,797 

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $20,749, was 
$504,745 in 2017. Cash paid for interest approximates interest expense. 

6. Commitments and Contingencies 

Operating Leases 

The Organization leases facilities from various parties, including related parties. All related party 
leases are at or below fair market value as determined by independent licensed appraisers. 
Certain facilities used for the operations of the Organization are owned and maintained by entities, 
trusts or individuals related to senior management of the Organization. Total rent for all leases was 
$1,296,519 in 2017. Total rent paid to related parties was $328,000 in 2017. 

Future minimum lease payments for all non-cancelable leases having a lease term in excess of 
one year are as follows: 

2018 $ 882,688 
2019 592,263 
2020 301,607 
2021 125 114 

Total $ 1,901,672 

Self-Insurance 

The Organization has a self-insured healthcare plan for substantially all of its employees. The 
Organization has obtained reinsurance coverage to limit its exposure associated with this plan 
individually of $75,000 with an aggregate limit of $3,885, 150 of the expected claims. At June 30, 
2017, the Organization has accrued $459,271, under the self-insurance contract, reported in the 
Organization's accrued expenses in the consolidated statement of financial position. 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Litigation 

The Organization is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. After 
consultation with legal counsel. management estimates these matters will be resolved without a 
material adverse effect on the Organization's future positions or results of operations. 

Property Purchases 

The Organization had entered into purchase and sales agreement to purchase several properties 
in Haverhill and Plainfield, New Hampshire as of June 30, 2017 for land and buildings totaling 
$2,524,000 for the purpose of expanding programs. These agreements were finalized in August 
2017. To finance these purchases the Orgranization obtained the following notes payable: 

MVTC note payable of $1,300,000 to Walnut Inns, Inc., due in monthly installments of $8,224, 
including interest of 4.50%, through August 2022; collateralized by real estate associated with the 
debt. 

Becket Academy note payable of $450,000 to Edward M. Van Dorn, due in month installments of 
$1,665, including interest of 6.0%, through September 2019; collateralized by real esate 
associated with the loan. 

7. Defined Contribution Retirement Plans 

The Organization provides defined contribution retirement plans for eligible employees. All 
employees aged 21 or older may begin participation in the plans. Years of service requirements 
range from one to two years depending on the entity. Plan contributions by participants and the 
Organization range from three percent to five percent of regular salary. 

Employer contributions were as follows: 

Becket 
MPA 
MVTC 
VPI 

Total 
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$ 152,089 
89,425 
33,879 

119 540 

$ 394.933 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

8. Service Provider Tax 

The Maine Legislature enacted legislation that repealed the sales tax on certain kinds of services 
and replaced it with a new Service Provider Tax (SPT). This law imposes a 6% SPT on the "value" 
(i.e., sales price) of certain services provided in the State, including Private Non-Medical 
Institutions services and certain clinical and outpatient services. Providers are taxed based on all 
revenue, regardless of source, received for the purpose of providing food, shelter and treatment. 
MaineCare is then reimbursing facilities for their portion of the tax by increasing their direct care 
per diem rate. The portion of the tax paid on revenue generated from private pay residents will not 
be funded by MaineCare. 

Total SPT expense was $308,207 in 2017. 

9. Surplus Revenue Retention 

The Organization is allowed to retain a portion of any surplus generated by its contracts with the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. During 2016, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Operational 
Services Division amended the surplus revenue retention by eliminating the 20% cumulative limits 
on surplus revenue retention and increasing the annual surplus limit from 5% of current-year 
contract revenue to 20%. As of June 30, 2017, as a result of the amendment, the Organization did 
not identify a contingent liability based on the 20% contractor annual surplus revenue retention 
criteria. 

10. Subsequent Events 

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. 
GAAP, management has considered transactions or events occurring through November 14, 
2017, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

Purchase of Property 

On September 21, 2017 Becket signed a purchase and sale agreement to purchase land and 
building in Auburn, Maine for the purposes of relocating one of its programs. The agreement is 
contigent upon approval from both the board of Becket and Maine's Department of Education. The 
total purchase price for the land and building is $1, 150,000 and the agreement is expected to be 
finalized in November 2017. The Organization plans to purchase this property through a bank 
financing arrangement. 

,-·" 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Mountain Valley Vermont 
Becket Mount Prospect Treatment Permanency lntercompany Consolidated 

Academy Inc. Academy Inc. Center Initiative Total Eliminations Total 
~ 

Current assets. 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,497,652 $ 979,980 $ 1,014,157 $ 644,063 $ 7,135,852 $ $ 7,135,852 
Assets whose use is limited 64,425 67,408 131,833 131,833 
Tuition and fees receivable, net 2,710,940 971, 124 61,814 2,147,291 5,891, 169 5,891,169 
Current portion of notes receivable 25,000 27,668 52,668 52,668 
Prepaid expenses 126,969 11,865 2,353 6,278 147,465 147,465 
Due from related parties 2 214 790 1133 126 73 300 15 774 3,436.990 (3,436.990) 

Total current assets 9 639 776 3,163,503 1 179 292 2,813,406 16 795 977 {3,436 990) 13 358 987 

' 
Property and equipment 

Land and land improvements 808,649 602,718 364,574 921,692 2,697,633 2,697,633 
Buildings and building 

improvements 6,146,528 3,175,379 1,487,404 3,539,866 14,349,177 14,349,177 
Leasehold improvements 861,748 393,094 623,956 385,574 2,264,372 2,264,372 
Vehicles and equipment 1,501,836 1,028,497 669,217 741,492 3,941,042 3,941,042 
Furniture and fixtures 604,223 258,995 370,600 152,568 1,386,386 1,386,386 
Construction-in-progress 127 928 914 230 341 366 161 980 1 545 504 1 545 504 

10,050,912 6,372,913 3,857,117 5,903,172 26,184,114 26, 184, 114 
~ss accumulated depreciation 3628411 2 908 072 1,860 014 648 657 9,045 154 9 045 154 

Net property and equipment 6 422 501 3464841 1 997 103 5 254,515 17,138 960 17 138 960 

Other assets 
Replacement reserves 7,544 7,544 7,544 
Notes receivable, net of current 

portion 440 329 440 329 {390,329) 50 000 

Total other assets 447 873 447 873 {390,329) 57544 

\ Total assets $ j6 510,150 $ 6,628 344 $ 3,176395 $ 8 067 921 $ 34 382 810 $ {3 827 319) $ 30,555,491 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position (Concluded) 

June 30, 2017 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Mountain Valley Vermont 
Becket Mount Prospect Treatment Pennanency lntercompany Consolidated 

8cadem~ Inc. Academ~ Inc. Center Initiative Total Eliminations Total 

' Curr~nt liabillties 
Current portion of long-term debt $ 804,000 $ 208,000 $ 104,000 $ 219,000 $ 1,335,000 $ $ 1,335,000 
Accounts payable 381,230 191,967 129,330 194,254 896,781. 896,781 
Accrued expenses 917,059 430,787 219,243 867,468 2,434,557 2,434,557 
Prepaid tuition 203,044 203,044 203,044 
Estimated third-party payor 

settlements 304,002 304,002 304,002 
Due to related parties 1354685 2,082,305 3.436,990 (3,436,990) 

Total current liabilities 2,406,291 830,754 2,010,302 3,363,027 8,610,374 (3,436,990) 5,173,384 
, 

Long-term liabillties 
Long-term debt, net of current 

portion and unamortized 
deferred costs 2,808,799 1,638,220 288,230 2,821,723 7,556,972 7,556,972 

Note payable 390,329 390 329 (390,329) 

Total liabillties 5,215,090 2,468,974 2,298,532 6,575,079 16,557,675 (3,827,319) 12,730,356 

Unrestricted net assets 11,295,060 4 159 370 877 863 1492842 17,825.135 17,825, 135 

\ 

Total liabillties and net 
\ assets (deficit) $ 16 510 150 $ 6 628 344 $ 3,176 395 $ 8.067 921 $ 34.382 810 $ (3 827 319) $ 30 555.491 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

Consolidating Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

' ' 
Mountain 

Mount Valley Vermont 
Becket Prospect Treatment Permanency lntercompany Consolidated 

Academy Inc. Academy Inc. Center Initiative Total;_ Eliminations Total 

Changes in unrestricted net assets 
Revenue and support 

Tuition, room and board, and other 
support, net $ 27,878,117 $ 8,547,467 $ 4,678,573 $ 17,784,829 $ 58,888,986 $ $ 58,888,986 

State nutrition program 59,472 98,189 157,661 157,661 
\ Management fees 504,287 32,282 536,569 (536,569) 

Other revenue 393,727 155,526 106,440 13,087 668,780 (158.401) 510,379 
Forgiveness of intercompany debt 928 888 928 888 (928 888) 

Total revenue and support 28 835 603 8,833,464 5 713 901 17 797 916 61180,884 (1 623,858) 59,557,026 

Expenses 
Program expenses 

Education and home life 23,258,029 7,177,086 4,306,314 15,836,189 50,577,618 (158,401) 50,419,217 
Supporting expenses 

General administration 2,970 220 744 088 417 979 1 493 257 5625 544 (536 569) 5 088,975 

\ Total expenses 26 228,249 7 921174 4 724 293 17 329 446 56 203162 (694 970) 55 508192 

Gain (loss) on d!sposal of property and 
equipment 53 062 25 723 (5 247) 2 341 75 879 75 879 

Forgiveness of intercompany debt (928 888) (928,888) 928 888 

Change in net assets 1,731,528 938,013 984,361 470,811 4,124,713 4,124,713 

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year -9,553 532 3,221,357 (106,498) 1,022 031 13 700 422 13 700,422 

Net assets, end of year $ 11 295,060 $ 4,159 370 $ 877 863 $ 1 492,842 $ 17.825,135 $ $ 17,825,135 

' " 
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BECKET ACADEMY, INC. ANO AFFILIATES 

Consolldatlng Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Education and Home Life General Administration 
Mountain 

'• 
Mounl Valley Vermont Mount Mountain Valley Vermont Total 

Becket Prospect Treatment Permanency lntercompany Total Program Becket Prospect Treatment Permanency lntercompany Supporting Total 
Academy Inc Acadernv Inc Center Initiative Elimlnatlons Expenses Academy Inc Academv Inc. ~ Initiative E!imlna!fons ~ ~ 

Salaries and wages $ 14,326,215 $ 4,271,410 $ 2,146,511 $ 9,652,369 $ $ 30,396,505 $ 1,767,827 $ 402,311 $ $ 608,639 $ $ 2,ns.m $ 33,175,282 
Employee benefits 1,848,653 787,970 448,219 1,262,189 4,347,031 227,927 74.217 79,589 381,733 4,728,764 
Payroll taxes 1 249 35'3 360232 169399 1 002 033 2 781 017 14§874 174Q6 64102 228 382 3 009399 

Total personnel costs 17,424,221 5,419,612 2,764,129 11,916,591 37,524,553 2,142,628 493,934 752,330 3,388,892 40,913,445 

Advertising n.aso 13,284 44,403 135,637 7,717 192 184,400 2,123 194,432 330,069 
Athlelfc transport and recrealion 64,238 23,960 48,554 113,871 250,623 250,623 
Auto repairs and lea9ing 372,287 33,238 52,069 280,547 (93,092) 645,049 37,823 903 38,726 683,775 
Bad debl9, net of recoveries 80,830 18,698 15,958 72.071 187,557 187,557 
Consultation 273,277 25,920 108,223 407,420 650 650 408,070 
Dues and subscfiPtions 7,651 4,829 9,799 1,195 23,474 7,028 348 1,172 8,546 32,020 
Equipment rental and maintenance 46,408 24,833 29,704 38,321 139,266 16,831 16,831 156,097 
Facllitles rental expense 727,968 146,301 195,192 255,167 (65,309) 1,259,319 37,200 37,200 1.296,519 
Fann 31,534 31,534 31,534 
Food and supplies 626,463 203,566 127,378 698,462 1,655,869 21,320 3,019 297 3,666 28,302 1,684,171 
Heating fuel 112,391 27,972 23,553 111,265 275,181 3,141 3,141 278,322 
Home life supplies 196,878 44,190 36,244 145,823 423,135 6,529 10,219 16,748 439,883 
Infirmary supplies 19,287 24,571 5,589 82,195 131,642 131.642 
Insurance 324,841 61.886 62,618 127,700 577,045 5n,045 
Interest 95,068 8,257 13,755 100,617 217,697 124,760 74,070 1,132 87,086 287,048 504,745 
Management fees 88,355 448,214 (536,569) 
Materials and supplies 10,805 5,960 5,431 8,220 30,416 21,866 12,481 194 1,861 36,402 66,818 
Office supplies 178,019 50,887 45,664 91,300 365,870 52,661 14,030 141 27,647 94,479 460,349 
Other 343,732 9,726 21,865 25,226 400,549 101,387 29.003 78,704 23,763 232,857 633,406 
Other occupancy costs 258,436 30,960 47,n4 120,544 457,714 5,623 5,623 463,337 
Pension contribution 126.240 87 ,314 33.483 31.061 278,098 25,849 2.111 396 88,479 116,835 394,933 
Professional services 95,341 58,977 188,374 103,541 446,233 235,135 99,393 38,040 20.186 392.754 838,987 
Real estale taxes 101,282 68,577 52,749 133,359 355,967 8,038 8,038 364,005 
Repair and maintenance 218,549 47,126 67,352 124,211 457,238 5,498 5,498 462,736 
Student dothing and 

personal items 34,785 13,325 4,082 81,451 133,643 133,643 
Student educational 

supplies 31,112 116,051 12,555 50,566 210,264 210,284 
Student transportation 447,572 200,858 57,647 236,770 942,847 7,659 342 8.001 950,848 
Teacher training and 

development 67,139 37,774 36,999 94,915 236,827 10,853 2.287 7,364 9,172 29,676 266,503 
Telephone 132,772 57,632 33,783 118,792 342,979 16,747 3,832 4.482 25,081 368,040 
Travel 5,344 2,972 8,316 25,143 2,992 3,688 23,076 54,899 63,215 
Ulililles 134,202 56,675 28,357 109,936 329,170 4,285 4,285 333,455 
Depreciation 622 941 2§0 047 228 203 408874 1536065 43849 5153 5049 54051 1 592 116 

Total $ 232;58 029 $ 111z 086 s 4 306314 $ j5 836 189 s (158 401) $ 50 419 217 $ 2 970 220 $ 744088 $ 4:11979 $ 1493257 $ (536 ~69) $ 50§8 ~7§ $ 5550~ 10i 
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rvfotthew J Cordaro 

Professional Experience 

Executive Director 
Step by Step Supportive Services -Brookline, JI.oft\ 
July 2014 to Present 

.. , 

0 In conjunction with the Board of Directors developed strategic goals and operational strategics to 

e.'i:ccutc the mission of the organization. 
0 Lead an agency wide reorganization by creating and implementing policies, processes, and cultural 

changes that improved serdce deli•'etj', ensured accountability, and emphasized compliance wirl1 
state and federal law. 

0 

0 

0 

0 

• 

Initiated compensation review that aligned with the Board's philosophy with organizations 
operational goals. 

Wiovcd the organization a\vny from tenure-based entitlements to performance and learning focused 
incentives. 

Created opportunities for mentorship and professional de••elopment, and increased staff morale and 
productivity. · 

Reduced donation dependency through revenue growth and expenses reduction or elimination. 

Improved agcnc}' security and \vorkflo\v by unifying IT seti.rices, de\riccs1 communication and 
soft\vru:c S}rste1ns. 

Health Care Management Consultant 
Self-Employed -Amherst, NH 
May 2012 to July 2014 

a Focused in beha\rioral health, case management, and managed care services. 

• Versed in rl1e development and operational analysis of program profitability, efficiency, and support. 

o Experienced in the development of complex care models servicing Medicaid and Medicare 
indi••iduals. 

• Provided direct consulting services to senior and executive le••el individuals within the N cw England 
Region. 

o Assisted in the development of strategic goals, budgets, and re••enue targets. 

• Provided P&L oversight and perform.•nce metric e•..Uuations. 

Vice President ofBehavioml Health Se1vices 
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Pediatric Health Choice - Tampa, FL 
June 2009 to :May 2012 

• Established Bella\•ioral Health Serdce division Q3HS) 

• Created all departmental policies and operational procedures for each funding source and the 
respecthre service. 

0 Reporting directly to the Board ofDirectors, Chairman/CEO I acted as the primary decision maker 
and signing authority for all matters associated with BI-IS. 

o Responsible for division compliance, P&L1 and re\rcnue. 

• Secured large multi-year high value contracts with prh•ate insurers, subsidiaries and srate/fcderal 
insures. 

• In 2010 established the Det'elopmental Center for Behavioral Sen•ices (DCBS) 
• The scrt'ice deli\•ery model utilizes a center-based approach to prm•ide enhanced access to a milieu of 

sen•ices to children 18 months to 18 years of age diagnosed \\~tl1 developmental disabilities or socfal, 
emotional, or complel< behavioral issues. 

• Services included Board Certified Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, Psycholog}' & Counseling, and 
Bella\•ior Analysis. 

• De\•eloped a large community based referral system that included mental health para-professionals, 
medicnl professionals (279 Pediatricians, 138 Psychiatrist), private entities, and governmen~1l 
agencles. 

• De,•eloped strategic relationships with members of the Gm•ernor's Policy and Budgeting Office and 
Florida State Senate. 

• August of 2011 submitted cost containment proposal to the Gm•ernor's Policy and Budget office, 
Agency for Persons with Disabilities (APD) to systematic ease a $150M budget ,deficit. 

o Februaq' 2012 submitted additional cost sa1ring measures to Senator Joe Negron1s office after his 
introduction ofSB1516. 

Chief El<ecutive 0 fficer / Founder 
Inspire Choice, Inc. - Tampa, FL 
Nm•ember 2007 to June 2009 

• Founded a home & community based support sen•icc for indh•iduals diagnosed with det'elopmental 
disabilities. · 

• Services included Applied Beha\•ioral Anal1•sis, behat'ioral and crisis pre\•ention training. 
o Created all departmental policies and operational procedures for each funding source and the 

rcspccti.\'C service. 
o Established contractual relationship with cl1e Florida Agency for Persons wicl1 Disabilities. 

• Responsible for operational finances, P&L, agency budgets. 
• FY2009 Inspire Choice, Inc. was acquired by Pediatric Health Choice. 

Technology 

Microsoft Office Programs (Word, Excel, Outlook, Power Point, Publisher) 
Adobe Master Collccri011 Programs (Acrobat X Pro, LightR.oom, Photoshop CS6, Premier Pro) 
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Education 

Masters Business Administration 
University of New Hampshire -Durham, NH 

Bachelors of Science 
Uni\•ersity ofMassadmsetts -Lowell, MA 

Associates Degree 
ivliddlcse~ Commun.it)• College - Bedford, MA 

Certification - Beha\•ioral Analysis 
Florida Institute ofTechnologj• - Orlando, FL 

Certification - Paralegal 
Universitj• of Massachusetts -Lowell, l\oIA 
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Jessica Burleigh 

Objective 
To obtain employment with Becket Family Services as Program Manager of the Seacoast Stabilization Center in 
Hampton, NH. 

Education 

MASTERS OF MANAGEMENT J 2010 J UNIVERSITY OF PHOENIX 
: Major: Business Management 

BACHELOR OF ARTSJ 2005 J UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
Major: Psychology and Justice Studies 

Minor: Studio Art 

Experience 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES MANAGER I TURNING POINT, INC DIVISION QF FAMILY 
SERVICES I DECEMBER 2013-PRESENT 

Work in collaboration with the Department of Children and Families (DCF) to reunify clients with their children in a safe 
and nurturing atmosphere. 

Facilitate a weekly parenting group that focuses on the how trauma and addiction affects parenting, child development, 
age appropriate expectations, routines, structure, boundaries, consequences. and discipline techniques, attachment and 
attunement, and safety. 

Develop and oversee individual treatment plans for each child and client. 

Weekly meetings with individuals and families. 

Provide stabilization and crisis intervention, which included giving in the moment support to clients and teach skills as 
needed. 

Supervise Children Advocates and help develop their knowledge, skills, and professional boundaries. 

Oversee playgroup activities and field trips, develop a summer program, and yearly garden project. 

Work with providers, such as Early Intervention, Head Start, therapist; Jeanne Geiger Crisis Center and set up services, 
update on clients, help mothers follow through with recommendations. 

Attend school meetings, IBP meetings, and provide homework support for school age children. 

Attend treatment meetings, foster care reviews, and court with clients. 

Work in collaboration with Horizons for Homeless Children and supervise t!Je PALS program. 
? ,.. (" 



Ovem:e the food bank, inventory, meetings and communication with Merrimack Valley Food Bank. 

Maintain !he safety aud security of property. 

On Call responsibilities including being available for staff for crisis/emergencies, policy and procedure questions, and in 
the moment decision making. 

CASE MANAGER I OUR HOUSE FOR GIRLS I MARCH 2009 - JUNE 2012 

Counsel adolescents in a residential program for emotional and behavioral concerns, as well as drug and alcohol depen­
dencies with strength ba~ed approaches. 

Role model appropriate behavior, use positive reinforcement to shape clients behavior and choices, provide guid.ince 
and nurturing, use crisis intervention and de-escalation techniques. 

Help residents learn to set long term and short tenn goals and outline achievable objectives. 

Teach basic communication and nonviolent approaches to conflict resolution. 

Guide residents through NH Trails to develop their independent living skills. 

Work with the client's family to reinforce positive behavior, goals, structure, and reunification. 

Update treatment team members about client's progress on treatment goals and any major incidents. 

Supervise an intern from the University of New Hampshire each semester. Help them reach their academic goals, pro­
vide support and feedback, weekly check meetings. 

Be available to staff on an on-<:all bases to guide them with in !he moment decision making and crisis intervention. 

RESIDENTIAL CARE SUPERVISOR I ODYSSEY NH I OCTOBER 2005- JUNE 2009 

Provide leadership, supervision, and training to Primary Care Givers in their roles of case managers and in therapeutic 
setting. 

Organize and schedule daily activities. 

Oversee the safety of residents and key decision making during shifts. 

Provide direct care and counseling to residents, teach residents independent living skills, structnre daily routines/ recre­
ations, and follow through/reinforce individual treatment plaos. 

Lead and participate in groups. 

Behavioral management and documentation. 

Certifications and Trainings 
CPR and First Aid, Medical Training Associates Inc., expires 8/20117 

. " - / ? 
Understanding Trauma and Caring for the Caregiver, Children with Voices: A Child Witness to Violence Program, 2016 
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Secondary Traumatic Stress, National Child Traumatic Stress Network, Horizons for Homeless Children, 2016 

The Nurturing Program for Families in Substance Abuse Treatment and Recovery, Institute for Health and Recovery 
{IHR),2015 

Monthly In-service Trainings; Radical Acceptance, Understanding Developmental Trauma, Mindfulness, Recovery and 
the 12 Steps, Heart Intelligence, Complex PTSD, Personality Disorders, Trauma Bonding, Interpersonal Violence and 
Addiction, Motivational Interviewing, Trauma and Addiction Cycle, December 2013-January 2017 

Water Safety and Supervision Training: Preventing Drowning in Child Care, DCYF/Child Development Bureau, 20JJ 

No Such Thing as a Bad Kid: Understanding and Responding to At-Risk Children and Youth Using Strength-Based Tht>­
ories and Practices, CbarlieApplestein, 2011 

Abnse/Neglected Children and Adolescents, Granite State College, 2010 

Serving Children, Youth and Families, Granite State College, 2010 

StaffRoles and Responsibilities, Granite State College, 2010 

Crisis Prevention Intervention (CPI), 2010 

Activities 
Shinobi Martial Arts, Plaistow, NH: To Shin Do (2nd degree black belt), Black Belt Club, assistant couch in youth class­
es, 2005- present 

Computer Skills 
· Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint 
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Heidi Jacobsen 
Clinical Director 

•Licensed Mental Health Counselor (LMHC) 
•Certified Addiction Professional: (M-CAP) 
• Internationally Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor; (ICADC) 
•Well organized professional treatment provider leveraging proven strengths in mental health and substance 
abuse treatment, 
• Extensive experience working with adolescem and adult clinical populations in community, residential, and 

criminal justi.ce settings. 
• Effective team player with proven commitment, productivity, leadership, problem solving, decision listening, 
interpersonal and communication skills. 
•Demonstrated success facilitating individual, group and family sessions addressing diverse treatment Issues. 
•Competent dedicated professional. Motivated with a positive attitude concerning all aspects of working in a 
challenging environment 
•Strives for professional excellence. 
• Demonstrates personal integrity, dependability and accountability 
wm1ng to relocate: Anywhere 
Authorized to worl< in the US for any employer 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

Cllnlcal Director 
American Addictions Cemers - Riverview, FL - 2015 -2016 

Oversees the clinical functions of the Residential 160 plus bed facility .including: clinical management, 
clinical policies and procedures, medical records, patient care information systems, quality management, staff 
credentialing and billing operations. ' 

• Responsible for the management and quality assurance of all clinical services provided, including the 
supervision of all clinical staff, peer reviews and daily clinical team meetings 
• Responsible for supervising use of best practice and of all aspects evidenced based curricula 
• Interview, hire, schedule, supervise, evaluate and discipline program staff 
• Adhered to established professional codas of ethics 
• Coordinates clinical activity adhering to Joint Commission standards 
• Provide quality assurance reviews as requested 
• Ensure quality client care, contract compliance and adherence to all policies and procedures 
• Responsible for overall quality and delivery of patient care 
•Maintain and adhere to accreditallons and DCF licenses 

Coordinator of Crisis Services 
American Addictions Centers - Pinellas Park, FL - 2015-02 - 2015-09 

Coordination and program implementation and monitoring of all aspects of the Crisis Stablllzation 
• Responsible for all clinical modalities in adult mental heallh services 
•Conceptualize, facilitate, and maintain clinically sound, creative and efficient therapeutic programs. 
• Res~qnsible for administrative an.ct clinical supervision of Cris~~ Services 



• Evaluation for coordination of consumers needing immediate evaluation under the Baker Act Responsible 
for continuous integration of services prior to hospitalization or upon discharge as dictated by treatment plan 
• Oversee and supervise staff and the provision of direct services to consumers, responsible for maintaining 
effective program operation on a 24 hour basis 
• Responsible for overall quallty and delivery of patient care 
• lnteiviews, hires. and trains staff, Evaluates oompatencies on an on-going basis 

· • Insures operationalization and follow through of policies and procedures 
• Coordinates and attends Baker Act Court hearings 
• Assists with ensuring all legal time frames are met 
• Maintains performance improvement, adheres to all licensure compliance, and prepares reports 
correspondence and serves of agency and community committees. 

FL Program Director 
WESTCARE FOUNDATION. - 2006 -2015 

Long term 88 Bed Residential Treatment Program serving male offenders with addictions and co-occuning 

disorders 
· • Program Development and Management 

•Team management/Productivity/Evaluations/Program Budget 
• Ensure quality client care, contract compliance and adherence to all policies and procedures 
• Maintain and adhere to accreditations and DCF licenses 
• Maintain relationships with Department of Corrections and other contracting agencies 
• SuperviSe use of best practices and evidenced based curriculum 
• Interview, hire, schedule, supervise and evaluate program staff 
•Clinical and Administrative Supervision (Masters and Bachelor Level clinicians and Milieu staff) 
•Network within community to develop and maintain community partnerships 
• Conduct weekly treatment team staff meetings 
• Responsible for facility compllan"'l with health, fire and other regulatory standards 
•Received Program of the Year 2014 

Clinical Supervisor 
WESTCARE FOUNDATION - 2011-2013 

Long term Residential Treatment Program serving male offenders with addictions and co-Occuning disorders 
• Supervise, train and evaluate program policies and progress for staff and clients under Program Director. 
Complete detailed case records and all documentation requir9d for clinical record and other assigned reports 
in a timely manner to all regulatory bodies 

Therapist WECAN SAMSHA Program 
WESTCARE FOUNDATION - 2009-2011 

serving female prescription drug abusers in the legal syslem 
• Provide gender specific individual and group therapy for prescription.drug abuse and·trauma related issues 
for the Pinellas Drug Court (Honorable Dee Anna Farnell) in conjunction with SAMSHA 

. •Conduct comprehensive bio--psychosocial assessments, individualized treatment plans, discharge planning 
and all court related reports and documents facilitating the continuum of care 
•Complete detailed case records and all documentation required for clinical record and other assigned reports 
in a timely manner to all regulatory bodies 
• Evaluate the psychological, social and physiological signs of and symptoms of drug abuse 
• Monitor, evaluate, and record client progress with respect to treatment goals 
• Modify treatment plans according to changes in client status 
• Provide family counseling 
r~ r~ 



• Collaborate with therapists, physicians, probation officers and other professionals and community services 
to coordinate and ensure service efficacy 
• Advocate in court proceedings 
•Educate dients and community members regarding co-<1ccuning disorder 

Drug Court Counselor 
WESTCARE FOUNDATION - 2007 - 2008 

Fee for Service Counselor serving diverse population with substance abuse and co-<JCCuning disorders in the 
legal system 

Access to Recovery Counselor serving homeless peoples 
WESTCARE FOUNDATION - 2006 - 2007 

with addictions including large population of veterans . 

Group Treatment Leader 
RIVERSIDE ACADEMY - 2005 - 2005 

-Tampa, F 

• Effectively facilitated individual and group substance abuse and mental health treatment for adolescent males 
• Acctlrately and efficienHy documented treatment interventions and progress, effectively prepared case 
reviews and performance I progress reports for other treatment providers. 

Crisis Counselor 
PEMHS/ PINELLAS JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER - Clearwater, FL - 2001 -2005 

• Effectiively facilitated individual and group substance abuse and mental health treatmenVCrisis stabilization 
• Recognized for capacity to develop effective therapeutic relationships with dients and capacity to work 
across agencies and in collaboration with other mental health treatment professionals to deliver comprehensive 
services. 

Child Protection Specialist 
STATE OF FLORIDA, SUNCOAST CHILD PROTECTION TEAM, INC - Pinellas Park, FL - 1997 -2000 

Chlld Protective Worker 
STATE OF MAINE - Portland, ME - 1997 -1999 

STATE OF MAINE, DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - Portland, ME - 1995- 1999 

CASA Volunteer I Guardian 
Lijem - 1995 - 1997 

EDUCATION 

MS in COUNSELING 
Springfield Coilege - Springfield, MA 
2009 

BACHELOR OF ARTS 
Universijy of New Hampshire Durham NH - Durham, NH 
1989 



Angela Yeaton 
HR Manager/ Payroll Administrator - Cornerstone VNA 

Utifize my expertence to further develop my career in Human Resources. 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

HR Manager/ Payroll Administrator 
Cornerstone VNA. - Rochester, NH - 2017-ll2 - Present 

Manage all onboarding of new hires including background checks, medical appointments, creating 

offer letters, licensing, new hire orientation 
Established and managed an effective recruiting process 
Successfully maintained lines of communication with all directors/managers to enable smooth 
processes 
Manage all aspects of payroll for 170 employees 
Manage all Workers Compensation and STD claims including FMLA and LOA letters. Ensure 
timely follow up on all employees for return date 
Assisted all employees with benefit related information. Also, the main point of contact with our 
brokers 
Effectively maintained a strong employee relations environment, proViding an open door policy for employee 
concerns and assisting other managers in developing skills in this function 
Main point of contact for all employees for HR and Payroll for 170 employees 

Office Manager 
Watson Fields Assisted Living Facility - Dover, NH - 2016-06-2017-02 

Provide support to all staff members; maintain departmental files and records 
Assist administrator with daily operations of facility 
Assist owner with investor relations 
Comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulatory requirements 
Implement procedures for admitting/discharging residents 
Manage residents records in compliance of state regulations 
Implement procedures for hiring/termination of employees, including maintenance of related 
documents 
Maintain personnel records in compliance with state regulations 
Maintain financial databases for residents; including long term care assessments 
Accounts payable/accounts receivable 
Manage all new hires including but not Jimtted to complete on-boarding process of employment 
physicals/TB testing/nurse license vertficationlbackground checks 
Demonstrate compassion for both the residents and family members 

Human Resource Associate 
Portsmouth, NH - 2014 -2016 

Provide support to all staff members; maintain departmental files and records 
Provide recruttment and HR support 
Maintain all emi;toyee personnel files, new hj\9 paperwork, promotions a_njl transfers. 



Schedule phone and o.nslte interviews with all candidates having dlrect contact with hiring managers and 

candidates making any necessary travel arrangements. 
Generate offer letters and packages to all candidates. 
Process all new hire and transfer paperwork. 
Responsible for on-boarding Initiatives Including initiallng and tracking background checks, 
physical/drug testing and orientation communication 
Process and maintain all temporary employee on-boarding paperwork 
Proofread and prepare departmental correspondences including offer letters and job postings prior to activation 
on the MP website 
Inform HRIS Specialist of temporary employee data, reception of new temporary employee start date, and 
maintain and update the temporary labor report 

Office & HR Manager 
Trunity, Inc - Portsmouth, NH - 2013-2014 

•erased due to web-based) 

Manage Human Resources including recruitment, hiring, creating offer letters, dlsciplinary action, 
employee benefit selection, team-building and performance evaluations 
Manage all accounts payable and receivables; Assist CFO in reconciling au accounts 
An advisor and primary resource to all employees in HQ, satelltte offices and remote environments for 
HR inquiries 
Streamlined and designed various HR documents including but not limited to the new hire and termination 
process, perfonnance improvement plans 
Liaise with multiple functional areas to ensure smooth and error-free implementation of company 
policies with regards to recruiting and compensation; Align HR functions with the company's strategic 
goals 
Manage all travel needs and reimbursements 
Investigate employee relations issues and recommend to management resolution options 
Manage payroll and track/record employee lime off requests and use 
Work with building management regarding lease and maintenance issue 

Executive Assistant 
Wentworth-Douglass Hospilaf - Dover, NH - 2000 - 2013 

Quality Improvement, Risk Management, Survey Readiness) 
OperaUonal support 
Provide all aspects of administrative support to the Senior Director of Risk ManagemenVSurvey 
Readiness, Executive Director of Clinical Compliance. 
Coordinate numerous monthly committee meetings, conferences and webinars with hospital staff and outside 
committee members. As well as monthly departmenlal staff meetings. 
Manage all payroll functions. Review and edit all employee lime cards. Monitor all employee 
absenteeism. 
HR Administrative functions including but not limited to CAS (assisting in employee reviews). Orient and train 
all new employees to the department. Assure all new employee paperwork has been 
completed and IS systems are in place. 
Manage department budget Including the preparation of the annual budget and all capital purchases. 
Monitor monthly expense reports and complete the processing of all Invoices. Ensure that all financial and 
budgetary objectives are met throughout the fiscal year. 
Develop strategies for improvement and/or correction of variances from budget for both expense and revenue 
line Items. · 

Manage all travel needs; process all invoices, non-PO forms and reimbursements. , 
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Maintain all office supplies and ordering. Coordinate purchases, maintenance and repair of all office 
equipment including all capital purchases. 
Primary resource for staff in any HR related inquires. 
Joint Commission Management 
Manage all Sentinel Alerts from the Joint Commission and coordinate Sentinel Alerts and ensure 
deliverables In a timely manner. Coordinate all Joint Commission Survey's and education. 
Mainlain all electronic software Ucenses for all Joint Commission needs system-wide. 
Facilitate and manage all accreditation applications for the Health System including Hospllal, Disease 
Certification, Stroke Certification and Ambulatory. Coordinate all ICM's and FSA's for the Health 

System. 
Manage all tracking, reporting and ensuring completion of all RFl's and MOS from survey's and ICM •. 
Assist with preparation and maintaining ai:creditation compliance prloi to all surveys. 
Risk ManagemenULegal: 
Coordinate retrieval of information for all legal cases throughout the Health System. 
Prepare quarterly Risk Management reports for the Board of Trustees. 
Coordinate and support the Wentworth-Douglass Health System Claims Committee. 
Assist slaff throughout the Health System with Risk Issues Including occurrence reporting and directing to 
appropriate chain of command. 
Coordinate all depositions and preparations with legal counsel and named parties. 

EDUCATION 

License in Certifications 
Seacoast Christian School - South Berwick, ME 
2021-09 



Becket Family of Services, Inc. 

Key Personnel 

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from 
this Contract this Contract 

Matthew Cordaro Executive Director 120,000 67% 80,000 
Jessica Burleigh ProITTam Manager 60,000 75% 45,000 
Heidi Jacobsen Clinical Director 80,000 20% 16,000 
Angela Yeaton HR Manager 45,000 100% 45,000 



Jerrrey A. Meyers 
CommiS:sioner 

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr. 
· Director 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES 

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857 
603-271-4455 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4455 

Fax: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 
www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcyf 

October 31, 2017 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T, Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and 

Families, to enter into an agreement with Becket Academy, Inc. dba Becket Family of Services, Vendor 
# 264251 R001, in an amount not to exceed $3,988, 164, for the provision of a minimum of twelve (12) 
beds, to sixteen (16) beds statewide which shall be available for male and female youth in a short-term. 
staff secure shelter care facility known as Becket Family of Services, located in Hampton, New 
Hampshire, effective upon date of the Governor and the Executive Council approval through August 31, 
2019. 50% Federal Funds, 50% General Funds. 

Funds are available in the following accounts for SFY 2018 and SFY 2019, and are anticipated 
to be available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and cc:mtinued appropriation of funds in the Mure 
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances 
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified, without approval from 
Governor and Executive Council. 

05-95-42-421010•29580000 HEAL TH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT 
OF, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES 

.. 
Fiscal 

Class/Account Class Title Job Number , Total Amount 
Year 

SFY 2018 535-500376 Out of Home Placements 42105852 $1,329,388 
SFY 2019 535-500376 Out of Home Placements 42105852 $1,994,082 
SFY 2020 535-500376 Out of Home Placements 42105852 .$664,694 

Total $3,988,164 

Because the Bridges System is used to process and monitor the payments for this agreement, 
no purchase order number is assigned. · The New Hampshire First System will not be used to 
encumber these funds. 

EXPLANATION 
The above action is requested to provide shelter care beds to ensure that court-ordered short­

tenn staff-secure shelter care services are provided to adolescents. The Division strives to have 
shelter care beds available statewide. This agreement with Becket Academy, Inc. will help provide that 
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resource to the Division as part of its service delivery options, thus the Division is requesting approval 
to guarantee payment for a cumulative total of twelve (12) beds, per day, whether or not those beds are 
filled. These beds shall be available for male and female youth. Reimbursement will be made on .a 
child per day basis, seven (7) days per week, 365 days per year. 

·Shelter care service provides short-term residential care for adolescents in crisis who are· 
awaiting further placement, evaluation, completion of a services plan, or court action. The youth are 
Children in Need of Services, delinquent, abused, or neglected and have been court-ordered to this 
type of residential placement. Shelter care services are comprised of 24-hour per day residential care, 
with a staff-to-youth supervision ratio of 1:3 or lower. In this self-contained setting, youth participate in 
school, individual and group therapy and physical/recreational activities. They also receive some 
medical care. 

Shelter care goals include: providing stability for youth by providing services that emphasize 
structure, ensures safety, and close supervision and containment; improving the youth's behavior 
through an effective behavioral management system based on their individual need; and maintaining 
the youth's connection to their family by facilitating contact between them and introducing concepts that 
promote healthy relationships. 

The youth served are typically in a transitional phase, often being removed from their home for 
the first time while the Division is in the midst of identifying the youth's individual treatment and/or 
rehabilitation needs. Many youth, with proper structure and family support, will return lo their homes, 
while others may go onto lengthier residential programs that provide more intensive therapeutic 
services. These services are sometimes used for youth who were in another residential placement and 
are transitioning their way back to home - with shelter care being a less intensive placement than their 
current one, and, therefore, a transitional step to ensure their successful return home. In yet other 
cases, shelter care may be needed for a youth that is transitioning from one residential placement to 
another, after treatment has revealed the need for a different therapeutic approach/residential setting. 
but for whom a bed at the next setting is not yet available. 

The costs associated with the Division's shelter care facilities are identified as either residential, 
educational or a combination thereof. For youth served that are educationally coded, their respective 
legally liable school district (local education agency) is responsible for payment of the educational 
costs. The educational costs for .Youth that are not educationally coded are the responsibility of the 
Division. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall be 
provided after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services 
provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received 
from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennia. 

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request. youth served may need to 
be placed in existing residential programs throughout the State. Those programs are more costly than 
shelter care. Should these youth, who are Children in Need of Services (CHINS), delinquent, abused, 
or neglected, have been court-ordered to this type of residential placement, the Division would not be 
able to provide this. 

Becket Academy, Inc. dba Becket Family of Services was selected for this project through a 
competitive bid process. A Request for Applications was posted on The Department of Health and 
Human Services' web site from July 7, 2017 through August 24, 2017. 
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The Department received one (1) application. The application was reviewed and scored by a 
team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the 
strengths and weaknesses of the application. The Bid Summary is attached. 

As referenced in the Request for Application and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement 
has the option to extend for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of 
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. 

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the 
agreement: 

• The Contractor achieving an 80% consumer (youth) satisfaction rating for the first year of the 
contract, and an 85% consumer (youth) satisfaction rating for the second year of the contract. 

• 100% of youth were seen by a duly licensed physician or advanced practice registered nurse for 
a physical examination within 30 days of admission. 

• In 100% of the cases, upon each youth's entry into the program, the Contractor utilized and 
completed a standardized intake sheet that captured essential information pertaining to the 
youth. 

• In 95% of the cases, the Contractor utilized a user-friendly admission process that worked 
cooperatively with the Department's referring staff. 

• 80% of youth reported feeling that they were physically safe in the program. 
• 80% of youth reported feeling that the program was structured, in that they were aware of the 

daily expectations of staff and youth. 
• In 95% of the cases in which a youth ran away from the program, the Contractor's staff utilized 

intervention techniques to prevent the youth from running (e.g. crisis management, de­
escalation techniques, peer supports, 1 :1 staff/youth supervision), as documented through the 
staff's daily reporting. 

• Within 24 hours of entry into the program, 100% of youth were provided with an orientation 
where the behavioral expectations and the Contractor's program rules were explained to them 
which shall include PREA. 

• Individualized treatment plans were established for 100% of youth within ten (10) business days 
of the youth's admission to the program. 

• 80% of youth made documented progress in the behavior management program during their 
participation in the program. 

• In 100% of the cases, the Contractor's documented facilitation of contact between youth and 
family. 

• In 90% of the cases wherein the Department requested this interaction, the Contractor's 
documented introduction to the youth and family of concepts that promote healthy relationships. 

• The long-term well-being of each youth was supported by the Contractor, as evidenced by: 

o Jn 95% of the cases, the Department's referring staff reported that the Contractor 
actively supported the development of permanency or appropriate discharge planning; 

o 90% of youth completed their stay at the shelter until the Department's planned 
discharge date; 

o The Contractor accepted 100% of the Department's appropriate referrals to the program 
(excluding referrals made, but not accepted, due to the limit established on the facility's 
license and the contract); 
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o 100% of authorized assessments were conducted (unless participation in the program 
tenninated prior lo timely completion) and resultant reports timely submitted to the 
Departr:nent; 

o The Division's referring staff were provided with weekly written reports identifying 
progress of the youth, 100% of the time; and 

o The Contractor provided discharge summaries to the Departmenfs referring staff, 100% 
of the time, within one (1) business day of discharge. 

• Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for any 
performance measure that was not achieved. 

Area served: New Hampshire 

Source of Funds: 50% Federal Funds from Medicaid, and 50% General Funds. 

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submit! 

!J L. 
JJ)S'eph 

A5irector 

ID/ /AJ I lltl,J--
Approved by: '"""V( 

ey Meyers 
Commissioner 

The Deportnient of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and fan,ilies 
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieue health and independence. 



Shelter Care Residential Services for 
Youth in New Hampshire 

RFPName 

Bidder Name 

1 
· Becket Family of Services 

2. 

3. 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of Business Operations 
Contracts & Procurement Unit 

Summary Scoring Sheet 

RFA-2018-DCYF-03-SHELT 
RFPNumber 

maximum 
Pass/Fail ·Points 

250 

ACllJal 

Points 

243 

Reviewer Names 

1 
Daniel French, Administrator II, 

· Juvenile Justice Services (Tech) 

2 
Eileen Mullen, Administrator Ill, 

· DCYF Child Proteclion (Tech) 

Kathleen Talbot.MSW, Commnty 
3. Prog Specialist, DCYF (Tech) 

Rebecca Lorden, Financial 
4. Manager, DHHS (Cost) 

5 
Santina Thibedeau, Adminstratr, 

· Bureau of Special Ed (Cost) 



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

'Zl Hazen Dr., Concord. NH 03301 
Fox: ~271-1516 TOD Access: 1~735-2964 

www.nh.gov/doit 

Denis Goulet 
Commi.ssioner 

November 7, 2017 

Jeffiey A. Meym, Commissioner 
·Department ofHewth and Human Services 
State of New Hampshire 
129 Pleasant Street 
Concord, NH 03301 

Dear Commissioner Meym: 

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (Don) 
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with Becket Academy, Inc. dba Becket Family 
of Services ofOrfonl, NH ... described below and referenced 88 DolTNo. 2018-0IS. 

This is a request to enter into a contract agreement to provide short-term, staff-secure· 
residential treatment services. The Shelter Care Program shall be limited to serving up to 
sixteen (16) New Hampshire youth, aged 11 to 18 years, for a period of up to sixty (60) 
days, 'with a New Hampshire DCYF referral, or are a Child in Need of Services (CHINS), 
or are delinquent and that have a valid court order for the service. 

The amount of the contract is not to exceed $3,988,164.00, and shall become effeclive 
upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval through August 31, 2019. 

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' 
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. · 

) 

Sincerely, ~ 

~}\~ 
Denis Goulet 

DG/kaf 
Doff #2018-0lS 

cc: Bruce Smitl!, IT Manager, DoIT 

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow• 



FORM NUMBER P-37 (venlon 518/IS) 
Subject: RFA-2018-0CYF-03-SHELT 

Shelter Care Residential Services for Youths in New Hampshire 

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval. Any infonnation that is private, confidential or proprietary must 
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract. 

AGREEMENT 
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

I. IDENTIFICATION . 
I.I State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street 

Concord, NH 03301-3857 

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address 
Becket Academy, Inc. dba Becket Family of Services P.O. Box325 

Orford NH 03777 

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1. 7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation 
Number 

603-353-9120 05-95-42-421OI0-29580000- August 31. 2019 
-

$ 3,988.164 
535-500376 

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number 
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq. 603-271-9330 
Director of Contracts and Procurement 

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory 

*'1~ ~ .... '{ - Wolftr, p, t: h :>I 11t" I • 

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of NH , County of '""·~ ~ u 

on Del. 3o :i.on , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily 
proven to be ihe person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged thats/he executed this document in the capacity 
indicated in block 1.12. 
1.13.1 Signature ofNotary Public or Justice of the Peace 

~ 9 ~ ,,,.ANITA J. BELYEA. Notary Public 

rseall 
Sta;e of New Hampshire 

~ . :omrnission i=vnlres Auaust 231 2022 
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace 

JUA.n; ~ .J. Bdy~ t...:. 
1.14 State Agency Signal~·-· ' I .I 5 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory 

,/} /';/.?" ti I 3117 1"o~l..i (2.b~- (), .,,f;.,. De ~1 7 ' u'&,.·/' Date: 
1.16 Apprtivalby the N.H. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel (if applicable) v . 

By: Director. On: 

1.17 

::ro\qj~~ ~lj1 ~Fijttan~ Exe.::,on) 1~;T~aj';J 
I.I& Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable) 

By: On: 
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO 
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting 
through the agency iderttified in block I. I (-State"). engages 
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform, 
and the Contractor shall perfonn. the worlc or sale of goods, or 
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached 
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference 
('"Services"). 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES. 
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary. and subject to the approval of the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if 
applicable, this Agreemen~ Md all obligations of the parties 
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor 
and Executive Council approve thisAgreement as indicated in 
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in "ilich case 
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the 
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 
1.14 ("Effective Date"), 
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior lo the 
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior 
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not 
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the 
Contractor, including without limitation. any obligation to pay 
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed. 
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date 
specified in block I. 7. 

4. CONDITTONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including, 
without limitation. die continuance or payments hereunder. are 
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation· 
of funds. and in no event shall the State be liable for any 
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated 
funds.. In the event of a reduction or termination of 
appropriated funds. the State shall have the tight to withhold 
payment until such funds become available. if ever, and shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State 
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account 
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that 
Account are reduced or unavailable. 

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
S. I The contract price, method ofpaymen~ and terms of 
payment are identified and more particularly described in 
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference. 
S.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the 
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all 
01<penses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the 
performance hereof. and shall be the only and the complete 
compensation to the Contractor for the Semces. The State 
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract 
price. 

S.3 The S1n1e reserves the right to offset from any amounts 
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement 
those liquidated amounts required or pemtitied by N.H. RSA 
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. 
S.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the 
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in 
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually 
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 
1.8. 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6.1 In connecrion with the performance of the Semces. the 
Contractor sl)all comply with all statutes, laws. regulations, 
and orders offederal, state, county or municipal authorities 
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, 
including. but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportonity 
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary 
aids and services to enstu'e that persons with communication 
disabilities.. including vision. hearing and speech. can 
communicate with, receive information from. and convey 
information to the Contractor. In addition. the Contractor 
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. 
6.2 During the term of this Agreemen~ the Contractor shall 
not discriminate against employees or applicants for 
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. 
handicap. sexual orientation. or national origin and will take 
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination. 
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the 
United States. the Contractor shall comply with all the 
provisions ofExc-cutive Order No. 11246 ("Equal 
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemcnled by the 
regitlations of the United States Department of Labor (41 
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines 
as the Stale of New Hampshire or the United States issue to 
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to 
permit the State or United States access to any of the 
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of 
ascertaining compliance with all rules. regulations and onlers. 
and the covenants. ternts and conditions of this Agreement 

7. PERSONNEL 
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all 
JlCf'Orutel necessary lo perform the Services. The Contractor 
warrants that all perronnel engaged in the Services shall be 
qualified to perfom1 the Services. and shall be properly 
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable 
laws. 
7 .2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, dwing the term of 
this Agreemen~ and for a period of six (6) months after the 
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire. 
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or 
corporatiOn with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to 
perform the Services to hire. any pets0n who is a State 
employee or official, who is materially involved in the 
procurement. administration or perfomiancc of this 
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this 
Agreement. 
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or 
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event 
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, 
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State. 

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. 
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the 
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder 
("Event of Default"): 
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on 
schedule; 
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder. and/or 
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition 
of this Agreement. 
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State 
may take any one, or more, or all. ofthc following actions: 
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event 
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the 
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time. thiny (301 
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is 
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two 
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination: 
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event 
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this 
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price 
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the 
period ftom the date of such notice until such time as the State 
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default 
shall never be paid to the Contractor; 
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to 
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any 
Event of Default; and/or · 
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its 
remedies at law or in equity, or both. 

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ 
PRESERVATION. 
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word •data,. shall mean all 
information and things developed or obtained during the 
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this 
Agreement, including, but not I imited to, all studies, reports, 
files, formulae. surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video 
recordingi pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, 
graphic representations. computer programs, computer 
printouts. notes, le~, memoranda, papers, and documenlS. 
all whether finished or unfinished. 
9.2 All data and any propcny which has been received from 
the State or purcltascd with funds provided for that purpose 
under this Agreement, shall be tho property of the State. and 
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon · 
termination of this Agreement for any reason. 
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA 
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data 
requires prior written approval of the State. 

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of 
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the 
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Conb'Bcting 
Officer, not later than fifteen (I Sl days after the date of 
termination, a report (wrermination Report") describing in 
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to 
and including the date of termination. The fonn, subject 
matter, conten~ and number of copies of the Tennination 
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Repott 
described in the attached EXHIBIT A. 

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE Sf ATE. In 
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all 
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor 
an employee of the State. Neither the Conttactor nor any of its 
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to 
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation 
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. 

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS. 
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any 
interest iit this Agreement without the prior written notice and 
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be 

, subconb'Bcted by the Conb'Bctor without the prior written 
notice and consent of the State. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and 
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the 
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, 
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers 
and employees, by or on behalfofany person, on account of, 
based or resulting from, arising out of(orwhichmay be 
claimed to arise out of)-the aCts or omissions ofthe 
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby 
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall 
survive the tennination of this Agreemenl 

14. INSURANCE. 
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole ""Pense, obtain and 
maintain in force,. and shall require any subcontnr.ctor or 
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following 
insurance: 
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all 
claims of bodily injury, death or propeny damage, in amounts 
of not less than S 1,000,000pcr occurrence and $2,000,000 
aggregate : and 
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage fonn covering all 
propeny subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not 
less than 80"/o of the whole replacement value of the property. 
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall 
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the 
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department or 
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New 
Hampshire. 
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14.3 The Contraclor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block I .9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) 
of inswance for all insurance required under this Agreement. 
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificale(s) of 
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this 
Agreement no later than thir1y (30) days prior to the expiration 
date of each of the insurance policies. Thecertificate(s) of 
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are 
incorporated herein by reference. Each cenificate(s) of 
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to 
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block I. 9, or his 
or her successor, no Jess than thiny (30) days prior wrinen 
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy. 

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
I 5.1 By signing this agreemen~ the Contractor agrees, 
cenifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with 
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A 
("Workers· Compensation"). 
15.2 To the extent the Contraclor is subject to the 
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall 
maintain. and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure 
and maintain, payment of Workers· Compensation in 
connection with activities which the person proposes to· 
undenake pursuant lo this Agreement. Contractor shall 
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his 
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the 
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any 
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are 
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be 
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation 
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or 
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might 
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers' 
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the 
Services under this Agreement 

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to 
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall 
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of 
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default No express 
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a 
waiver of the right of the StatC to enforce each and all of the 
provisions hereof upon any funher or other Event of !><:fault 
on the pan of the Contractor. 

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto lo the other party 
shall be deented to have been duly delivered or given at the 
time of mailing by cenified mail, postage prepaid. in a United 
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses 
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein. 

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, 
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed 
by the panies hereto and only after approval of such 
amendmen~ waiver or discharge by the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State ofN ew Hampshire unless no 

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to 
State law, rule or policy. 

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and · 
inures to the benefit of the panies and their respective 
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement 
is the wording chosen by the panics 10 express their mutual 
intent. and no rule of construction shall be applied against or 
in favor of any party. 

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to · 
benefit any third panies and this Agreement s_hall not be 
construed to confer any such benefit 

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement 
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained 
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or 
aid in the interpretation~ construction or meaning of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set 
forth in the attached EXHIBIT Care incorporated herein by 
reference. 

23. SEVERABIUTY. In the event any of the provisions of 
this Agreement are held by a coun of competent jurisdiction to 
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement. which may 
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior 
Agreements and understandings relating hereto. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
RFA-2018-DCYF.03.sHELT 
Shelter Care Residential Services for Youth In New Hampshire 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

~ -
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detaUed description of the languag11 .assistance services 

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful 
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective 
date. 

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New 
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the 
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities 

·and expenditure requiremenis under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance 
therewith. 

1.3. The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are 
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or 
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to 
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of 
funds. · 

2. Scope of Servi~es 

2.1. Covered Populations 

2.1.1. The Shelter Care Program shall be limited to serving New Hampshire youth, 
aged 11 to 18 years, with a New Hampshire DCYF referral, or are a Child in 
Need of Services (CHINS). or are delinquent and that have a valid court order 
for the service. 

2.1.2. The youths served may have special academic needs, since many have been 
identified as educationally disabled. 

NOTE: The program is NOT designed or expected to serve the following populations: 

2.1.2.1. Youth who are actively suicidal to the extent that the youth's 
capacity to participate in the program is impaired and that their 
safety within the program may be compromised. This determination 
will be made by a qualified mental health professional, or a staff­
member of a mental health facility; 

2.1.2.2. Youth who are intoxicated or under the influence of illegal or non­
prescription drugs, or suffering from misuse of a prescribed drug 
such that a potential medical emergency exists; 

2.1.2.3 .. Youth who are diagnosed as actively psychotic or suffering from 
emotional disorders or chronic mental illness such that the youth's 
capacity to participate in the program is impaired; 

Becket Academy, Inc., dba 
Becket Family of Services 

RFA ·201 S.DCYF-03-SHELT 

Exhibit A 
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New Hampshire Department of f{ealth and Human Services 
RFA·2018.0CVF-03-SHEL T 
Shelter Care Residential Services for Youth In New Hampshire 

Exhibit A 

~ -
2.1.2.4. Youth who are physically assaulbve lo a degree which would 

endanger the safety of program youth or staff; or 

2.1.2.5. Youth who have been previously convicted or currently charged with 
the crime of arson (RSA 634:1 ), or have a history of fire setting 
such that the safety of the youth and staff may be immediately 
endangered. 

2.2. Scope of Work 

The Contractor must: 

2.2.1. Provide short-term, staff-secure residential treatment services for up to sixteen 
· (16) youth, ages 11 to18, who have a DCYF referral, Child in Need of Services 
(CHINS) designation, or who are delinquent and have a valid court order for the 
services, and in accordance with applicable state and federal rules, 
certifications, and licensure requirements, for a period of up to sixty (60) days. 
Unless a waiver submitted by the Contractor and approved by the State to 
extend past the sixty (60) day time frame. This will be determined on a case 
by case basis. 

2.2.2. · Respond to the Department's request from referring staff within thirty {30) · 
minutes. 

2.2.3. Receive youth into care with an admission process that responds immediately 
to the needs of DCYF referring staff and ensures that critical information 
pertaining to each youth is obtained as quickly as possible. 

2.2.4. Provide participants with clinical services, educational services, structured 
physical activities including weekend wilderness-based adventure 
programming, and community service/volunteer opportunities. 

2.2.5. Provide services which emphasize structure in daily routines, safety, close 
supervision and containment in the residential setting to ensure that youth 
experience stability and safety. To improve the youth's behavior by providing 
an effective behavioral management system based on their individual needs. 

2.2.6. Assist the Department with the development of a discharge plan that is 
appropriate to meet therapeutic and permanency needs of the youth which will 
support the long-term well-being of each youth. 

2.2.7. Provide each youth with the ability to maintain a connection to their family or 
caretaker, as authorized by the Department's DCYF staff, by facilitating contact 
between youth, family connections and introducing concepts that promote 
healthy relationships. 

2.3. Core Shelter Care Services 

2.3.1. The program will be located at 30 Winnacunnet Road in Hampton, New 
Hampshire. · 

2.3.2. The Contractor shall operate the shelter care facility program twenty-four (24) 
hours a day, 365 days per year. 

Becket Academy. Inc .• dba 
Becket Family of Services 

RFA -2018-DCYF-03-SHELT 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
RFA·2018-DCYF..03-SHELT 
Shelter Care Residential Services for Youth In New Hampshire 

Exhibit A 

2.3.3. I he Contractor snail provrde snort-term, staff-secure res1den!ral treatment 
services for up to sixteen (16) youth, ages 11 to18, who have a DCYF referral, 
Child in Need of Services (CHINS) designation, or who are delinquent and 
have a valid court order for the services. 

2.3.4. The Contractor will adhere to requirements of NH Code HE-C4001, NH 
Residential Child Care Licensing Rules and all required state and local 
requirements for licensing, health and safety codes, and zoning. 

2.3.5. The Contractor will adhere to requirements of a program that is staff-secure 
according to New Hampshire's Administrative Rule, He-C 6350.02(ao), and is 
highly structured to safely house the youth in the residential setting using 
residential staff to ensure safety. 

2.3.6. The milieu shall be a therapeutic program that promotes responsibility, 
personal growth and positive behavioral changes in the youth, that include, but 
are not limited to, the short-term seryices: 

2.3.6.1. Trauma reactivity and behaviors; 

2.3.6.2. Chronic running away; 

2.3.6.3 .. Substance use disorder; 

2.3.6.4. Physical aggression and acting out; 

2.3.6.5. Engagement in sexual acting out; 

2.3.6.6. Suicidal ideation and gesturing; 

2.3.6.7. Conflictual family and caretaker relationships; 

2.3.6.8. Demonstration of anti-social behavior; 

2.3.6.9. Educational issues; 

2.3.6.10. Mental Health Diagnoses; and 

2.3.6.11. Oppositional defiant and conduct disordered behaviors. 

2.3. 7. The Contractor shall maintain a secure dorm space and dedicated staff for the 
residential services program separate from the Community Based Acute 
Treatment (CBAT) program. The programs will share common areas which 
shall include, but are not limited to: 

2.3.7.1. Kitch'!ln and dining hall; 

2.3.7.2. Recreational areas; 

2.3.7.3. Educational facilities; and 

2.3.7.4. Meeting rooms. 

2.3.8. The Contractor shall have participants function as part of a community and . 
engage in a variety of structured, supervised activities which shall include, but 
not be limited to: 

2.3.8.1. Educational programming 

2.3.8.2. Physical activities; 
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2.3.8.3. I herapeubc services; and 

2.3.8.4. Community service/volunteer activities. 

2.3.9. The Contractor shall have participants, as members of !he residential 
community, be responsible for: 

2.3.9.1. Maintaining their sleeping area in a clean, orderly fashion; 

2.3.10. The Contractor shall have participants, as members of the residential 
community participate in a rotating schedule of chores that includes: 

2.3.10.1. Cleaning the common area (tidying up, vacuuming, sweeping, 
emptying trash, etc.) 

2.3.10.2. Assisting with meal preparation and clean-up. 

2.3.11. The Contractor shall allow some intermingling of CBA T and residential services 
students and shared activities as appropriate. The Contractor will not tolerate 
any program disruptions, and CBA T students who cannot control their behavior 
will be kept separate from shelter care residents and vice versa. 

2.3.12. The Contractof shall meet all of the requirements of a Shelter Care Facility, as 
defined in Administrative Rule He-C6350, "Certification for Payment Standards 
for Residential Treatment Programs." The program design will target a short 
term model of service delivery that provides rehabilitative services that meet 
the requirements identified in Administrative Rule He-6420, "Medicaid Covered 

c Services." In addition to these requirements, the Contractor shall be required 
to: 

2.3.12.1. Conduct a psychosocial assessment: 

2.3.12.2. Develop a treatment plan within ten (10) business days of the youth's 
admission to the program; 

2.3.12.3. Assess treatment plan goals regularly and document in weekly 
progress reports; and 

2.3.12.4. Conduct additional assessments that may be included in the youth's 
court order. · 

. The Contractor shall provide less than a thirty (30) minute response to referrals 
made by Department and the program shall be available to the Department . 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for 365 days per year. 

2.3.13. The Contractor shall comply and demonstrate continued compliance with the 
U.S. Department of Justice, the Prison Rape Elimination Act {PREA) of 2003 
and shall designate a PREA administrator for the program. 
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2.3.14. I he Contractor snail comply with the Reasonable and Prudent Parent Standaid 

consistent with federal standard in SSA 475(10)(A) and shall identify a prudent 
parent at their program. A Reasonable and Prudent Parent Standard is 
characterized by careful and sensible parental decisions made by a caregiver 
for a youth in foster care (placement), which maintains the health, safety, and 
best Interests of the youth while encouraging the emotional and developmental 
growth of the youth through participation in extracurricular, enrichment, cultural, 
and social activities. 

2.3.15. The Contractor's nursing staff will coordinate student medication administration 
and address any medical needs program participants might have. The nurse 
will conduct a medical exam of each youth entering the program; If a program 
participant is lacking required immunizations or has not had a complete 
physical within the past year, the required services will be arranged. 

2.3.16. The Contractor must create services that align with DCYF's mission and 
Practice Model in Exhibit L. 

2.4. Intake 

2.4.1. Upon referral, an assessment and evaluation process will be completed for 
each potential program participant. 

2.4.2. Upon arrival, each participant will be assigned a Milieu Clinician. 

2.4.3. The assessment and evaluation process will ensure that each student's level of 
risk Is determined so that appropriate levels of supervision and intervention can 
be maintained. 

2.4.4. The Program Director and/or Intake/Assessment Coordinator will conduct a 
pre-intake evaluation to assess the appropriatene_ss of placement. 

2.4.5. Planned admissions and· after-hour emergency admissions will be made 
through the Intake/Assessment Coordinator via a designated phone number. 
The phone line will be staffed 24 hours/day, 365 days/year .. Response to calls 
will be within 30 minutes. 

2.4.6. The Intake/Assessment Coordinator shall notify the referring agency and use 
his/her best efforts to advise the referring agency when a bed is likely to be 
available. If no beds are available, the student can be added to the program's 
waiting list. 

2.4. 7. An intake meeting will be held upon the established admission date, with the 
student and whenever possible, his or her family and a representative from the 
referring agency. During this meeting, the student and his/her family will be 
introduced to the assigned clinician. 

2.4.8. Intake meetings for cases of emergency intake, will be held as soon as 
practicable, usually the next business day. 

2.4.9. The intake meetings will provide orient.alien of the student and his/her family 
and other involved parties to the treatment planning process and Hampton 
House program expectations. At a minimum, the meeting shall seek to 
accomplish the following; 
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2.4.9.1. Review expec!abons of student, family and commurnfy resources, as 
they relate to treatment and program participation; 

2.4.9.2. Complete required paperwork including U\e intake packet, informed 
consent, and approved contact list; 

2.4.9.3. Have a preliminary discussion about potential treatment goals and 
objectives; 

2.4.9.4. Explain the treatment planning process and identify key treatment 
team members; 

2.4.9.5. Share contact information; 

2.4.9.6. Answer any questions that the child or his/her family may have about 
the program or treatment plan; and 

2.4.9.7. If the child's family is present, initial work on family assessments and 
home-time contracts also may occur during this initial meeting. 

2.4.10. A~er the intake meeting, the Intake/Assessment Coordinator, Clinical Director, 
and/or Milieu Clinician shall transition the student into the program. 

2.5. Clinical 

2.5.1. The Contractor shall provide group and individual counseling that is driven by 
each youth's treatment plan. Substance misuse counseling and/or education 
must be provided for each youth, as appropriate. The program shall employ, at ·· 
a minimum, one-half (Y:.) day per week, consultation services from a clinician 
and/or a prescribing practitioner licensed with the NH Board of Mental Health 
Practice or NH Board of Psychology, which shall include:· 

2.5.1.1. Diagnostic Evaluation performed by a staff member who meets the 
qualifications identified in Administrative Rule He-C6344, which shall 
include but not limited to: ' 

i. Diagnostic Evaluation performed by a staff member who meets 
the qualification. identified in Administrative Rule He:C6344; and 

ii. Dual diagnos.is of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Evaluation. 

2.5.1.2. There shall be a maximum of thirty (30) evaluations conducted within 
the fiscal year. 

2.5.2. The Contractor shall complete evaluations based on the following guidelines: 

2.5.2.1. Evaluations shall only be conducted on adjudicated youth, identified 
by the Department's referring staff as in need of this service. 

2.5.2.2. Evaluations shall be completed within a twenty-one (21 ), to thirty (30) 
calendar-day time-frame, unless an alternative time-frame beyond 
thirty (30) days is established by the court or the Department's 
referring staff. The time-frame for completing evaluations begins on 
the day of admission. 
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2.5.2.3. Evaluations are compietewnen.tbe written document has been 
delivered by electronic transmission or U.S. mail to the Department's 
referring staff. 

2.5.3. A nursing assessment shall be completed within 24 hours of admission. 

2.5.4. A clinician shall be assigned to all participants. Clinician will establish in 
conjunction with other stakeholders, treatment goals and expectations. 

2.5.4.1. Treatment goals and expectations will be identified during the 
participant's treatment plan during the first ten (10) days of residing in 
the program; 

2.5.4.2. Treatment goals will bei measured weekly and documented in weekly 
progress reports and sent to the Department's referring staff. 

2.5.5. The Milieu Clinician will provide overall case management and clinical support 
to the participant and their family, and facilitate weekly phone calls with the 
referral sources and identified family systems. 

2.5.5.1. The Milieu Clinician will use various evidence based approaches, 
including, but not limited to: 

a. Strength-based counseling; 
b. Safety and behavior counseling; 
c. Communication support; 
d. Anger management; and 
e. Trauma-focused counseling. 

2.5.6. The Milieu Clinician shall, within ten (10) days following a student's admission, 
complete an inttial psychosocial assessment and develop a treatment plan. 
This assessment will serve as the foundation upon which the initial treatment 
and preliminary aftercare plans are developed. 

2.5.6.1. The Milieu Clinician shall, within ten (10) days of admission, develop 
an individualized treatment plan (ITP) for each student. 

2.5.6.2. The ITP shall be reviewed and approved by the Clinical Director prior 
to implementation. 

2.5.6.3. The ITP shall Include a permanency plan, a concurrent plan and a 
community reintegration and transition plan. 

2.5.6.4. ITP goals will .be assessed regularly and documented in a weekly 
progress report. 

2.5.6.5. ITP's shall be updated as necessary to respond to emerging and 
evolving needs of each student. 

2.5. 7. The Milieu Clinician will provide a minimum of one (1) individual session and 
two (2) group counseling sessions per week, utilizing cognttive behavioral and 
"mindfulness movement" therapeutic approaches. 

2.5.8. The Milieu Clinician may use other .assessment tools to best plan for treatment, 
which may include, but not be limited to: 
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2.5.8. 1. Youth Level of Service/Case Management inventory; 

2.5.8.2. Addiction Severity Index;. 

2.5.8.3. Beck Depression Inventory; and 

2.5.8.4. Beck Anxiety Inventory. 

Ila -
2.5.9. The Contractor will have a State of NH Licensed Drug and Alcohol Counselor 

to conduct alcohol and drug abuse evaluations specified in He-C6344, if 
deemed necessary by the Individual's treatment team. The Contractor's 
Clinical Director, who is a !llH licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, will 
complete the diagnostic evaluations if deemed necessary by the individual's 
treatment team. 

2.5.10. The Contractor will provide rehabilitative services that meet the requirements of 
Administrative Rule He-6420 (Medicaid covered services) for the short-term 
model of service delivery. 

2.5.11. The Contractor shall ensure that participants will receive 1 to 2 hours of 
individual therapy each week and two (2) hours of group therapy per week. 

2.5.12. The Contractor shall use trauma-informed evidence-based therapies to best 
help each participant and meet their needs while maintaining a strength-based 
approach. These approaches include: 

2.5.12.1. Crisis Stabilization; 

2.5.12.2. Trauma Informed Cognitive Behavior Therapy; 

2.5.12.3. Motivational Interviewing; 

2.5.12.4. Life Skills Training; 

2.5.12.5. Mindfulness Practices; 

2.5.12.6. Experiential Therapy; 

2.5.12.7. Dance/Movement Therapy; 

2.5.12.B. Eye Movement Desensitization and Reprocessing (EMDR); 

2.5.12.9. Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT); and 

2.5.12.1 O.Crisis Stabilization. 

2.6. Family Component 

2.6.1. The Contractor shall incorporate a family-centered focus that is reflected in the 
program's milieu. The facility shall have a family component that emphasizes 
on-site services facilitated by the Family Worker. The primary focus will be that 
the program's philosophy endorses a family-centered ·model. The program 
shall provide the following services to families: 

2.6.1.1. Supportive system of verbal and written communication with families; 

2.6.1.2. Flexible visiting hours, 10:00 AM - 7:00 PM daily; 

2.6.1.3. Supervised visitation that accommodates the family's schedule; 
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2.6.1.4. I ransportauon for and coordmabon of scheduled home v1s1!S; 

2.6.1.5. Supportive services that promote family reunification when identified 
by the Department's referring staff; 

2.6.1.6. Services and activities that promote family involvement at the 
residential setting from intake to discharge; 

2.6.1.7. Parental education and family counseling; 

2.6.1.8. Facilitate and supervise telephone communication between youth and 
family members; 

2.6.1.9. Be available by telephone to respond to family members' routine 
inquiries on nights, weekends, and during youth's home visits; and 

2.6.1.10. Receipt of weekly progress reports. 

2.7.1. The Contractor shall provide the services of a Registered Nurse (RN), for a 
minimum of two (2) hours daily, onsite, unless an alternative medical staffing 
plan is approved by the Department. Services will include, but not be limited 
to: 

2. 7.1.1. Conducting intake health assessments within twenty-four (24) hours 
of admission and taking appropriate action if the health assessment 
unearths any concerns that warrant ·further examination; 

2. 7 .1.2. Overseeing the administration of medications and training staff in 
proper techniques for medication administration, monitoring and 
storage; 

2.7 .1.3. Coordinating medical examinations for youth in accordance with NH 
Medicaid Program Rule He-W 546 (see Section 2.6.5); 

2.7.1.4. Schedule a physical with the youth's Primary Care Physician (PCP). 
If not possible, either because the youth does not have a PCP, the 
PCP's office is prohibitively far away, or the PCP cannot schedule an 
appointment within 30 days, the RN will secure an appointment for the 
youth with a local doctor or urgent care facility; 

2.7 .1.5. Maintain medical records, including physical exam report, for each 
program participant and providing copies to the Department's referral 
source at discharge in accordance with HIPAA; 

2.7.1.6. Provide medical care to program participants as required, conduct 
preliminary assessment of participant injury/illness to determine what 
level of care is necessary. If the level of care exceeds on-site 
capacity, facilitate transfer of participant to an appropriate medical 
facility; 

2.7.1.7. Liaising with the Psychiatric Consultant relative to participant 
medication and guiding staff accordingly. 
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2. I .2. I he Contractor snail provide nursing services dunng non-business hours, 

including weekends and. holidays with nursing staff who take turns being 'on 
call" via phone for medical consultation. 

2.7.3. The Contractor ensures that acute care will be provided by the nearest urgent 
care facility or emergency room depending on the severity of the injury/illness. 

2.7.4. The Contractor shall provide an alternative medical staffing plan to be 
approved by the Department. 

2.7.5. The Contractor shall provide access to a medical provider(s) who will conduct 
health care assessments for all new admissions, acute care and oversee the 
administ"'tion of medications. The Contractor shall also establish safeguards 
through staff training on medication administration, monitoring and storage. 

2.7 .6. The Contractor shall provide medical examinations for youth in accordance 
with NH Medicaid Program Rule He-W 546 (EPSDT). Youth shall receive this 
service within thirty (30) days, if not completed in the year prior to admission. 

2. 7 .6.1. The Contractor shall retain documentation that a comprehensive 
physical exam has been completed .within t~e year if this service is not 
completed. 

2. 7 .6.2. The Contractor shall ensure the youth be seen by a physician 
assistant or advanced practice registered nurse if the health 
assessment referenced in 2.6.1.1 unearths any concerns warranting 
further examination. 

'2.7.6.3. The Contractor shall provide copies of the physical examination report 
to the Department's referral source at discharge in accordance with 
HIPAA and all required releases. 

2.7.7. The Contractor shall also comply with all of the other health care requirements 
in New Hampshire's Administrative Rules He-C 6350, He·C 4001, and He-C · 
6420. 

2.7.8. The Contractor shall have reasonable access to the services of licensed health 
practitioners and dentists, including emergency services. 

2. 7 .9. The Contractor will not bear the cost of medical services authorized by the 
Department and provided outside the facility, except for sub-contracted 
assessments, if any. 

2.8. Recreation 

2.8.1. The recreational component shall be part of the daily schedule including a 
variety of highly structured and supervised activities. This shall include gender 
specific and age appropriate activities. · Since containment and supervision of 
youth is integral to the program; the shelter will establish a number of on-site 
recreational, athletic and leisure activities. Activities in the community shall 
only be conducted when it is determined that youth will be provided with high 
levels of supervision and support. 
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2.8.2. 1 ne Contractor wm offer adventure acirvmes on the weeKenas ror those 
students who meet behavioral criteria for safe participation. These activities 
include, but are not limited to: 

2.8.2.1. State-of-the-art ropes course and climbing tower; 

2.8.2.2. Miles of hiking trails; 

2.8.2.3. Campsites, several wood-heated cabins for winter use; 

2.8.2.4. A paintball course; 

2.8.2.5. Disk-golf course; 

2.8.2.6. Mountain bikes; 

2.8.2. 7. Backpacking gear for hiking; 

2.8.2.8. Canoes, kayaks, paddleboards, inner tubes; 

2.8.2.9. Cross country skis; and 

2.8.2.10. Snowshoes. 

2.9. Education 

2.9.1. The Contractor shall provide an educational component which shall provide 
academic programming for each youth that meet the standards set by the New 
Hampshire Department of Education (DOE) for educ1;1tion services, specifically 
New Hampshire RSA 186:11, XXIX and New Hampshire's Administrative Rule, 
Ed 1100, RSA 21-N:9, 11, and Ed 400. The primary focus will be working with 
the youth's home school to ensure that there remains continuity in the youth's 
education. 

2.9.2. The Contractor shall provide an educational program which may operate a 
traditional school year (10 months) with a two-month summer program. The 
Contractor shall provide extended school year services to any youth whose IEP 
requires it · 

2.9.3. If any youth is identified as a youth with a disability, the Contractor shall comply 
with the educational services in accordance with New Hampshire's 
Administrative Rule, Ed1100. 

2.9.4. The Contractor will provide educational services to those students unable to 
attend classes provided by Connections for Kids through the Kittery Academy, 
with on-site tutoring as necessary. 

2.9.5. The Contractor will identify youth who can participate in established Extended 
Leaming Opportunities in the community, including individual and group 
volu.nteer sites, as well as unpaid internships. Participation is based on the 
student's: 

2.9.5.1. Level of safety; 

2.9.5.2. Behavioral consistency; 

2.9.5.3. Motivation; and 
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2.9.6. The Contractor will appropriately supervise and provide volunteer opportunities, 

internships, community service and restitution, as well ~s field trips and field­
based learning opportunities which shall include, but not be limited to: 

2.9.6.1. Feed, groom, and clean up after animals at the Kittery H"orse Farm; 

2.9.6.2. Hold food drives, carry donations, stock shelves, and other activities 
as necessary at the Footprints Food Pantry; 

2.9.6.3. Plan and hold clothing drives; hold bake sales, and participate in other 
supportive activities at the Fair Tide Thrift Store and/or the 
Crossroads Homeless Shelter; 

2.9.6.4. Assist with volunteer trail maintenance at the Fort Rock Bike Trail 
Network; and 
. - - .-- -~~.· 

2.9.6.5. Participate in educational programs and assist with trail maintenance 
at Fort Foster. 

2.9.7. The educational component must also comply with the applicable requirement 
identified in New Hampshire's Administrative Rule, He-C6350.18. 

2.9.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department, in conjunction with DOE, to 
determine the portion of the annual budget that is for educational services. 

2.9.9. The Contractor's educational staff shall provide the Department with copies of 
the final educational discharge summary to the Juvenile Probation and Parole 
Officer (JPPO)/Child Protective Services Worker (CPSW) within one (1) day of 
discharge from the Shelter. The information will be used to draw the 
Department's attention to educational implications that may factor into the 
youth's ability to function in their local school setting. 

2.9.10. The Contractor shall ensure that the facility is eligible to receive Title I, Part D 
funding. 

2.9.11. The Contractor shall ensure that the Department is provided copies of all 
educational reports/summaries during the youth's stay at the facility. 

2.9.12. The Contractor ·shall work with the sending/receiving schools to assist in the 
facilitation of the youth's education plan, move back into the identified school or 
transition into the new school upon discharge as well as coordinate any school 
credit earned. 
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2.9.13. I he Contractor has 1dentmed the Kitlery Academy, located rn Mame as their 
provider for educational services. Kittery Academy shall go through the private 
school and special purpose private school (Special Education) Maine DOE 
certification. Kittery Academy is a licensed and fully operating special 
education school, providing all required services (instruction, IEP development, 
case management, behavioral support, accommodations, etc.). Clinical 
Services are included as well, but all other ancillary services (e.g., OT, PT, or 
Speech) are provided on a contractual basis by the Contractor, and are paid for 
by the sending school district. Kittery Academy shall work in compliance with 
the DOE Administrative Rule governing separation of a 4-year age difference in 
a classroom for special education and will be able to accommodate educating 
all students who attend from the Shelter Care Program. 

2.9.14. The Contractor has identified staff in the organizational chart listed under 
"Educational" services who are employees of Kittery Academy, which includes: 

2.9.14.1. One (1) Special Education Administrator; 

2.9.14.2. Two (2) Special Education Teachers; 

2.9.14.3. Two (2) licensed Clinicians, and 

2.9.14.4. Four (4) Behavioral Health Professionals. 

2.9. 15. If DCYF believes working with a New Hampshire based educational provider is 
more advantageous for those youth being served, the Contractor shall work 
with DCYF to identify an appropriate partner. 

2. 10. Transportation 

2.10.1. The Contractor is not expected to provide transportation to other facilities. 

2.10.2. The Contractor shall provide a sufficient ratio of drivers and assume the cost of 
a transportation component, which shall include transportation to/from: 

2.10.2.1. Local medical, dental or behavioral health related appointments; 

2.10.2.2. Department authorized home visits; 

2.10.2.3. Department authorized court appearances; and 

2.10.2.4. For any transportation required as part of the Contractor's recreation 
and school component. 

2.10.3. The Contractor shall ensure that any vehicle used for transportation of youth 
will be: · 

2.10.3.1. Properly inspected, registered and insured; 

2.10.3.2. The driver holds a valid driver's license in the State of New 
Hampshire; and 

2.10.3.3. Driver shall be insured. 

2.10.4. The Contractor will provide transportation to and from all program-related 
appointments and meetings y.thich shall include, but not be limited to: 
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2.10.4.1. Local medical, dental or behavioral health-related appmntments; 

2.10.4.2. Department-authorized home visits; and 

2.10.4.3. Department authorized court appearances. 

2.10.5. The Contractor will provide transportation for all recreation, school and 
community-service related activities. 

2.10.6. The Contractor's vehicles utilized by this program will be: 

2.10.6.1. Properly inspected and registered; 

2.10.6.2. Insured; 

2.10.6.3. Maintained in good working order; and 

2.10.6.4. Will be equipped with basis safety equipment which shall include, but 
not be limited to: 

a. Spare tire; 
b. Jack; 
c. First aid kit; 
d. Fire extinguisher; and 
e. Accident insurance packs. 

2.10.7. The Contractor's drivers. will be employees who meet the following 
requirements: 

a. Be at least 21 year,i; of age; 
b. Hold a valid New Hampshire driver's license; ., .. 
c. Have an acceptable driving record; 
d. Beinsured;and 
e. Must follow Becket's safe driving protocols. 

2.11. Discharge Procedures 

2.11.1. The Contractor shall discharge youth in accordance with the plan devised by 
the Department's referring staff or an order from the court. Any other 
discharges must fall within the criteria, which would exclude a youth from 
participation in the program (see Section 2.1, Covered Population). 

2.11.2. The Contractor shall promptly notify the Department's referring staff and the 
DCYF Program Specialist of the decision to discharge a youth from the 
program. The discharge will not occur until after 48 hours of notifying the 
Department's referring worker during the week or until 72 hours of notifying the 
Department's referring worker on a weekend. 

2.11.3. For all discharges initiated by the Contractor under the above provision, a 
discharge summary shall be submitted to the Department's DCYF Program 
Specialist, with a copy to the Department's referring staff. This summary will be 
submitted within one (1) business day of the discharge, consistent with New 
Hampshire's Administrative Rule He-C 6350.120), and an updated copy of the 
youth's information sheet will be forwarded to the referring worker. 

' ' Becket Academy, Inc., dba 
Becket Family of Services 

RFA -2018-DCYF.03-SHEL T 

Exhibit A Contractor Initials ~ 
Page 14 of 27 Dato tDjlQlfl 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
RFA·2018.0CYF-03-SHELT 

~ -Shelter Care Resldentlal Services for Youth In New Hampshire 

Exhibit A 

2.11.4. In the case of a youth who runs away or leaves without perm1ss1on from the 
residential setting, the provider authorization for services shall be closed on the 
day the youth runs away. The provider shall be paid for the youth through the 
day the youth leaves the facility, consistent with New Hampshire's 

. Administrative Rule He·C 6350.04. 

2.11.5. The Contractor shall prepare a discharge summary for each student on or 
before the discharge date and, in all cases, it will be completed within one (1) 
business day following discharge. 

2.11.6. The Contractor's final progress report shall include, in addition to information 
generally contained in a monthly progress report: 

2.11.6.1. Reason for discharge; 

2.11.6.2. Where the student was discharged; 

2.11.6.3. Needs of the student which remain to be met, including statements in 
regard to progress within each identified treatment domain; 

2.11.6.4. Aftercare plan for me.eting needs of the student; 

2.11.6.5. Discharge Medication Status; 

2.11.6.6. Copies of the most recent treatment plan; 

2.11.6. 7. Academic records, including· most recent report card, and if 
applicable, IEP. • 

'·' 
2.11. 7. The Contractor may initiate discharge in the event that a program participant 

engages in behaviors that are contrary to the criteria for program participation 
as indicated in Section 3.5.1.5. 

2.11.8. The Contractor shall promptly notify the Department's referring staff and DCYF 
Program Specialist of the decision to discharge a youth from the program 
should a decision be made to discharge a participant for engaging in prohibited 

. behaviors. 

3. Staffing 

2.11.8.1. Discharge Will not occur until after 48 hours of notifying the 
Department's referring worker during the normal work week, or 72 
hours on a weekend. · 

2.11.8.2. A discharge summary shall be submitted to the Department's DCYF 
Program Specialist with a copy to the Department's referring staff. 
This summary will be submitted with one (1) business day of the 
discharge as per New Hampshire's Administrative Rule HE-C 
6350.120). 

3.1. Staff Qualifications and Training 

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide a minimum staff/youth ratio of 1 :3. 

3.1.2. The Contractor shall provide at least three (3) awake, overnight staff during 
youth sleeping hours with an option to secure a fourth night staff to support the 
program as necessary. 

Becket Academy, Inc .. dba 
Becket Family of Services 
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3.1.2.1. One staff snail remain on eacn gender floor; and 

3.1.2.2. The third staff will alternate between the floors to assist during room 
checks and provide additional support should an issue arise. 

3.1.2.3. The Contractor shall provide staff with two-way radios to facilitate 
communication. · 

3.1.3. The Contractor shall provide an on-call system with the administrative staff to 
provide support and consultation by phone at all times to direct care workers. 

3.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide relief staff and the ability to 
respond to crisis or emergency situations. 

3.1.5. The staff shall include administrative and direct care staff as well as 
consultants and support staff needed to operate the facility. 

3.1.6. The Contractor shall work with the Department to determine the portion of staff 
time that is reimbursable as Medicaid services, including obtaining worker time 
samples. 

3.1.7. The Contractor shall have 1.0 FTE Nurse position which shall be shared with 
the CBAT program located at the facility. The Nurse will be supervised by the 
Program Director. 

3.1.8. The Contractor shall have 1.0 FTE Clinical Director position which shall be 
Sh<!red with the CBAT program located at the facility. The Clinical Director will 
be supervised by the Program Director. 

3.1.9. The Contractor shall have one 1.0 FTE Program Director position which shall 
be located at the facility. The Program Director will be responsible for 
coordinating and running the day-to-day operations of the program which shall 
include, but not be limited to: 

3.1.9.1. Supervising residential staff and counselors; 

3.1.9.2. Participate in admission of new residents; 

3.1.9.3. Ensure smooth orientation into the program; 

3.1.9.4. Overseeing enforcement of BFS program, policies and procedures; 
and 

3.1.9.5. Participates in development and implementation of residents' 
community treatment care plans. 

3.1.10. The following requirements must be adhered to by the Contractor when staffing 
the facilify consistent with New Hampshire's Administrative Rules, He-C 4001 
and He-C 6350: . 

' --~ . ;,-~JI.-..;;;,' 

3.1.10.1. All.staff ate at.1easr·21 years of age; 

3.1.10.2. Any staff with driving responsibilities must have a driver's license valid 
in the State of New Hampshire and a good driving record. 

3.1.10.3. The Program Director must be full-time and, must meet the 
requirements identified in New Hampshire's Administrative Rules, He­
C4001.19 and He-C 63503.11. 

Becket Academy, Inc., dba 
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3.1. I 0.4. Medical staff must be hcensed by the appropriate licensing board; 

3.1.10.5. Educational staff must meet DOE requirements; 

3.1.10.6. Child care workers must meet the requirements identified in New 
Hampshire's Administrative Rule, He-C4001 (19); 

3.1.10.7. The prescribing practitioner shall be licensed by the NH Board of 
Mental Health Practice or NH Board of Psychology consistent with 
New Hampshire's Administrative Rule, He-C 6350.02(2) (ae); 

3.1.10.8. The Contractor must identify a Prudent Parent for the program; 

3.1.10.9. The Contractor must identify a PREA Coordinator for the program; 

3.1.10.10. The Masters' level clinician position (Licensed Social Worker) shall be 
licensed by the State of New Hampshire; and 

3.1.10.11.All other support staff shall have appropriate degrees for their 
discipline, experience with youth and if required by New Hampshire, 
duly licensed, registered or certified to practice in their profession. 

3.1.11. The Contractor shall ensure that staff is trained in accordance with NH General 
Program Administration Chapter He-C 6350.11 (i) - (m), Requirements for Staff. 
There shall be an emphasis on training that prepares staff to care for youth in a 
short-term program. Ali staff, as part of their orientation, shall be trained in first 
aid/CPR, physician intervention and de-escalation techniques, and will read 
and acknowledge understanding of the NH Dom.estic Violence Protocols. 

3.1.12. The Contractor's program personnel shall: 

3.1.12.1. Be atleast 21 years of age; 

3.1.12.2. Participate in staff orientation which will include training in First 
Aid/CPR, physical intervention and de-escalation techniques such as 
CPI or Safety Care; and 

3.1.12.3. Read and acknowledge their understanding of New Hampshire 
domestic violence protocols and requirements for child abuse 
reporting. 

3.1.13. The Contractor's training for staff will be in compliance with all standards 
specified in applicable licensing and certification regulations. 

3.1.14. The Contractor ensures that proposed staffing is grouped according to primary 
areas of focus which shall include: 

3.1.14.1. Residential Services; 

3.1.14.2. Clinical Services; 

3.1.14.3. Health Services; and 

3.1.14.4. Educational Services. 

3.2. Other Programmatic Considerations 

Becket Academy, Inc .. dba 
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3.2. 1. I he Contractors physical environment must adhere lo requirements within the 
New Hampshire Code of Administrative Rules, He-C 4001 NH Residential Child 

. Gare Licensing Rules, and must meet state and local requirements. This 
includes licensing, health and safety codes. It is the responsibility of the 
Contractor to secure appropriate zoning if required by the local town. The 
Contractor is responsible for furnishing the facility in a functional and attractive 
manner. When possible, the living space for the youth population should be 
normalized. 

3.2.2. The Department recognizes that, periodically, there will be a need to increase 
the intensity of services provided to a youth(s) in order to support them through 
a crisis that occurs during their placement. The Contractor shall maintain a 
crisis response and on-call system in which key administrative and clinical staff 
will take turns "on call" so that there will be an on-call administrator and 
clinician available by phone at all times. In the event of a clinical or 
administrative crisis, program staff will call the on-call number for assistance. 
In response to the call, the Administrator on Duty will formulate a response 
plan, which may include, but is not limited to: 

3.2.2.1. Providing additional on-site support (either in-person, or by calling in 
off-duty staff); 

3.2.2.2. Calling for emergency assistance (police, ambulance); and/or 

3.2.2.3. Recommending a plan of action. 

3.2.3. The Contractor will retain a complete ~opy of_ each student's records for a 
period of five (5) years. 

3.2.4. For youth who abscond fro\TI the program, the Contractor shall report to local 
law enforcement so that the youth is placed on NCIC and a police report 
number is obtained. The Contractor shall notify the Department referring staff 
and parent/guardian under those circumstances. 

3.2.5. Should the referred youth commit a crime· while at the sheller program, the 
Contractor shall work with local law enforcement to report such crime for further 
investigation. 

3.3. Outcomes, Performance Measures and Indicators 

3.3.1. It is expected that the Contractor shall achieve the following outcomes, 
performance measures, and indicators. 

3.3.2. Youth were provided with quality staff-secure residential services, as evidenced 
by: 

3.3.2.1. The Contractor achieving an 80% consumer satisfaction rating for the 
first year of the contract, and an 85% consumer satisfaction rating for 
the second year of the contract. Consumer is identified, for the 
purpose of this contract, as the youth served and their parents or 
caretakers; and 

Becket Academy, Inc., dba 
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3.3.2.2. 100% of youth were seen by a duly licensed phys1c1an or advanced 
practice registered nurse for a physical examination within 30 days of 
admission consistent with Section 2.6.6. 

3.3.3. Upon intake into the program, each youth's immediate individual needs were 
identified by the Contractor, as evidenced by: 

3.3.3.1. In 100% of the cases, upon each youth's entry into the program, the 
Contractor utilized and completed a standardized intake sheet that 
captured essential information pertaining to the youth; and 

3.3.3.2. In 95% of the cases, the Contractor utilized a user-friendly admission 
process that worked cooperatively with the Department's referring 
staff. 

3.3.4. Youth experienced stability during their stay, as evidenced by: 

3.3.4.1. 80% of youth reported feeling that they were physically safe in the 
program; 

3.3.4.2. 80% of youth reported feeling that the program was structured, in that 
they were aware of the daily expectations of staff and youth; and 

3.3.4:3. In 95% of the cases in which a youth ran away from the program, the 
Contractor's staff utilized intervention techniques to prevent the youth 
from running (e.g. crisis management, de-escalation techniques, peer 
supports, 1: 1 staff/youth supervision), as documented through_ the 
staff's daily reporting. ' 

3.3.5. Youth improved their behavior through the Contractor's effective behavioral 
management system, as evidenced by: 

3.3.5.1. Within 24 hours of entry into the program, 100% of youth were 
provided with an orientation where the behavioral expectations and 
the Contractor's program rules were explained to them which shall 
include PREA; 

3.3.5.2. Individualized treatment plans were established for 100% of youth 
within ten (10) business days of the youth's admission-to the program; 
and 

3.3.5.3. 80% of youth made documented progress in the behavior 
management program during their participation in the program. 

3.3.6. Youth were able to maintain a connection to their family or caretaker, as 
authorized by the Department's staff, and as evidenced by: 

3.3.6.1. In 100% of the cases, the Contractor's documented facilitation of 
contact between youth and family; and 

3.3.6.2. In 90% of the cases wherein the Department requested this 
interaction, the Contractor's documented introduction to the youth and 
family of concepts that promote healthy relationships. 

3.3. 7. The long-term well-being of each youth was supported by the Contractor, as 
evidenced by: 
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3.3. 7 .1. in 95% of the cases, the Departments refernng staff reported that the 

Contractor actively supported the development of permanency or 
appropriate discharge planning; 

3.3.7.2. 90% of youth completed their stay at the shelter until the 
Department's planned discharge date; 

3.3. 7 .3. The Contractor accepted 100% of the Departmenfs appropriate 
referrals to the program (excluding referrals made, but not accepted, 
due to the limit established on the facility's license and the contract). 

3.3.7.4. 100% of authorized assessments were conducted (unless 
participation in the program terminated prior to timely completion) and 
resultant reports timely submitted to the Department; 

3.3.7.5. The Division's referring staff were provided with weekly written reports 
identifying progress of the youth, 100% of the time; and 

3.3. 7.6. The Contractor provided discharge summaries to the Department's 
referring staff, 100% of the time, within one (1) business day of 
discharge. 

3.3.8. Outcome statistics shall be compiled by the Contractor and reported to the 
Department for each fiscal year (July 1st to June 30th). A report detailing the 
outcome .. results will be forwarded to the Department's DCYF Program 
Specialist by the second week in July of each year. In addition, the 
Department will work with Contractor to identify monthly reporting requirements 
that will address one (1) or more performance indicators and measures. · 

3.3.9. The Contractor shall work with the Department to develop standardized forms 
for intake and for tracking performance measures. 

3.4. Annually, the Contractor shall develop arid submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan 
for any performance measure that was not achieved. · 

3;5. The Contractor will work closely with DCYF to develop strategies for data collection to 
measure compliance with desired outcome measures. Desired outcomes are: 

3.5.1. Suspected child abuse reporting policy will be adhered to 100% of the time; 

3.5.2. Individual treatment plans will be completed no later than the first business day 
following ten (10 ) days after admission (90% of the time); 

3.5.3. Weekly progress reports will be sent no later than 5:00 PM on the second 
business day following the weekend; 

3.5.4. The Intake Packet shall be completed 100% of the time by the 
Intake/Assessment Coordinator no later than 24 hours following admission, or, 
if information is not available, document efforts to complete said packet with a 
memo outlining missing information; ,,. 

3.5.5. Participant shall receive a nursing assessment within twenty-four hours of 
admission 100% of the time; 
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3.5.6. Referral inquiries lo our referral nobine are responded lo w1lhm 30 minutes 
90% of the time and within one hour 100% of the time, including overnight 
emergency inquiries; 

3.5.7. All critical incidents, including student injuries, student aggression, 
managements, holds and similar incidents, are docurnented and brought to the 

· attention of the Program Director and Clinician, with the expectation that staff 
conduct in these situations is not deemed abusive or neglectful 100% of the 
time; 

3.5.8. Staff are able to promptly identify that a participant has eloped 100% of the 
time (upon bed-check during overnights) following said event; 

3.5.9. For participants demonstrating behaviors that require them to be held or 
maintained out of program to ensure safety of self and others, said behaviors 
shall be reduced during the course of student stay in the program (80% of the 
time); 

3.5.10. There is documented facilitation of youth/caregiver contact, unless prohibited 
by DCYF of other appropriate authorities, 100% of the time. 

3.6. He-C6350 Certification for Payment Standards for Residential Treatment 
Programs 

3.6.1. The Contractor shall comply with the following: 

3.6.1.1. New Hampshire's Administrative Rule, He-C 4001, NH Residential 
Child Care Licensing Rules, except as describlld in staff to child 
ratios; 

3.6.1.2. Provide a program which shall provide staff-secure short-term care for 
sixty (60) days or less to children in crisis who are awaiting further 
placement, evaluation, completion of a service plan, or court action as 

Becket Academy, Inc., dba 
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follows: · 

3.6.1.2.1. Staffing during awake hours shall be at a ratio of 1 :3 
which shall include: 

3.6.1.2.1.1. One (1) clinical coordinator; and 

3.6.1.2.1.2. One (1) family worker. 

3.6.1.2.2. Three (3) awake, overnight staff shall be available at the 
shelter care program. Should the census drop below 4. 
children, two (2) overnight staff shall be maintained, of 
which one (1) overnight staff shall remain awake in the 
building; 

3.6.1.2.3. The program shall secure the services of a registered 
- nurse for a minimum of two (2) hours daily; 
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3.6.1.2.4. ine program snau secure me services of a Chmcal 
Director who shall have a Master's Degree in social 
work, mental health counseling, marriage and family_ 
therapy, psychology, guidance counseling or other 
related field and be licensed by the New Hampshire 
Board of mental Health Practice, plus have at least four 
(4) years of experience working in the field; 

3.6.1.2.5. The Clinical Director will be responsible for oversight of 
the Clinical Services component of the program which 
will include, but is not limited to: 

3.6.1.2.5.1. Provide supervision and support regarding 
the initial and ongoing case 
managemenUclinical process for all 
identified Milieu Clinicians, Family Workers 
and Recreational Therapists; 

3.6.1.2.5.2. Support clinical staff in completing the 
intake/assessment process by utilizing 
youth and family driven care; 

3.6.1.2.5.3. Support ongoing professional development 
training opportunities for clinical,· residential, 
and other direct-care staff directly correlated 
with the milieu process; 

3.6.1.2.5.4. Continue to research current evidenced 
based practices to support all identified 
treatment and assessment options that are 
being provided to . referred clients and 
families. 

3.6.1.2.6. The Residential Program Manager will serve as 
designated Prudent Parent and PREA Administrator, 
which shall include, but is not limited to: 

3.6.1.2.6.1. Ensure that the program complies with 
requirements of SSA 465(10)(A) and PREA; 
and 

3.6.1.2.6.2. Prepare all associated reporting and 
record keeping. 

3.6.1.2.7. The program shall provide placement for children under 
RSA 169-B and RSA 169-D; 

3.6.1.2.8. The shelter care program shall provide services that 
assist the child to prevent the need for further placement 
until such time as there is a subsequent court order; and 

3.6.1.2.9. The program shall serve children between the ages of 11 
and 18 years, who shall not be suffering from acute 
mental disorders or substance abuse withdrawal. 
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3.6.1.3. I he program shall mamtam a mulb:C1sc1punary, seil-con!a1ned means 
of service delivery in a highly monitored setting to meet the needs 
identified within the treatment plan, as follows: 

3.6.1.3.1. The shelter care program shall respond with appropriate 
interventions to stabilize the behaviors of children in 
placement; 

3.6.1.3.2. Clinical services shall be provided through the shelter 
care program's on-site program unless a special 
circumstance is identified through the treatment plan to 
support utilizing a community provider; 

3.6.1.3.3. The clinical services available at the shelter care 
program shall include: 

3.6.1.3.3.1. Group and individual counseling that is 
. driven by each child's treatment plan; 

3.6.1.3.3.2. Daily therapeutic group activities which 
shall include, but not be limited to: 

a. Art therapy; 

b. Mindfulness; 

c. Movement therapy; and 

d. Fitness. 

3.6.1.3.3.3. Substance misuse counseling to be 
provided for each child, as appropriate; 
and · 

3.6.1.3.3.4. The ability to complete alcohol and drug 
abuse evaluations, or diagnostic 
evaluations per New Hampshire's 
Administrative Rule, He-C6344 within the 
course of placement. 

3.6.1.3.4. The program shall establish a number of recreation and 
leisure activities on site in order to monitor and supervise 
the child effectively. Activities in the community shall be 
conducted when it is determined that the child can be 
provided with high levels of structure. supervision, and 
support. 

3.6.1.4. The program shall respond immediately to the needs of the 
Department's referring staff and ensure that critical information 
pertaining to each child is obtained as quickly as possible. 

3.6.1.5. The program shall not be designed or expected to serve the following 
populations, and may request removal of a child within 48 hours 
during business hours and 72 hours during non-business hours if the 
child presents with one (1) of the following conditions after the 
admission: 
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3.6.1.5.1. Acbvely suicidal referrals such that the child s capac1fy to 
participate in the shelter care program is impaired and 
that his or her safety within the program may be 
compromised. This determination shall be made by a 
qualified mental health professional, or a staff member of 
a mental health facility; 

3.6.1.5.2. Intoxicated or under the influence of illegal or non­
prescription drugs, or suffering from overuse of a 
prescribed drug such that a potential medical emergency 
exists; 

3.6.1.5.3. Psychotic or suffering from emotional disorders or 
chronic mental illness such that the child's capacity to 
participate in the shelter care program is impaired; 

3.6.1.5.4. Physically assaultive to a degree which would endanger 
the safety of shelter care program child or program staff; 
or 

3.6.1.5.5. Previously convicted or currently charged with the crime 
of arson pursuant ·to New Hampshire's RSA 634:1, or 
has a history of fire setting such that the safety of the· 
shelter care program, child, and staff may be 
immediately endangered. 

3.6.1.6. Maintain an educational program which shall be eligible for Title 1 Part 
D funding and maintain approval as a non-public school per New 
Hampshire's Administrative Rule, Ed 400 and a private provider of 
special education per New Hampshire's Administrative Rule, Ed 1100 
from the NH State Board of Education, to include: 

3.6.1.6.1. A primary focus of working in collaboration with the 
child's home school to assure continuity of education; 

3.6.1.6.2. Educational programming to children who are not· 
determined eligible for special educational services and 
shall be provided on site in a program approved by the 
NH State Board of Education in acc6rdance with New 
Hampshire's Administrative Rule, Ed 400; 

3.6.1.6.3. Acceptance of children based on the identified approval 
as a private provider of special education by the NH 
State Board of Education; and 

3.6.1.6.4. A traditional school year of ten (10) months with a 2· 
month summer program. The need of any children 
whose individual education plan calls for a summer 
program shall be met. 

3.6.1. 7. The program shall provide transportation to and from: 

Becket Academy, Inc., dba 
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3.6.1.7 .2. Rome visits, m accordance With New Aampshire s 
Administrative Rule, He-C 6350.25(a); 

3.6.1.7.3, Court appearances; and 

3.6.1.7 .4. Recreation and school trips required as part of the 
shelter care program. 

3.6.1.8. The residential treatment program shall not be required to provide 
transportation to and from other programs. 

3.6.2. Intake information on each child shall be obtained upon admission, to include; 

3.6.2.1. Copies of court orders relating to the approval of and payment for the 
placement; 

3.6.2.2. Copies of authorizations for emergency medical or court-ordered 
services; 

3.6.2.3. The Department's DCYF case plan, if available; and 

3.6.2.4. A photograph of the child before or upon arrival at the shelter care 
program. 

3.6.3. The 'sheller care program shall document each child's educational information, 
to include: 

3.6.3.1. A medical authorization. completed within five (5) calendar days of 
admission; 

3.6.3.2. A health assessment completed by a registered nurse within twenty­
four (24) hours of admission; and 

3.6.3.3. A physical examination completed by a physician, physician assistant, 
or advance practice registered nurse within three (3) weeks of 
admission, if there are known medical needs Identified through the 
health assessment in Section 2.4.6 above, warranting further 
examination. 

3.6.4. The shelter care program shall document each child's educational information 
to include: 

3.6.4.1. An educational assessment completed in accordance with the 
provisions of New Hampshire's Administrative Rule, Ed 1107, by a 
teacher within five (5) calendar days of admission; 

3.6.4.2. An educational status and history; and 

3.6.4.3. A written weekly progress report completed by the teacher. 

3.6.5. The shelter care program shall maintain weekly contact with the Department's 
••';, staff to discuss the progress of the child on a weekly basis, and document and 

share with the Department each child's behavioral information, as identified in 
New Hampshire's Administrative Rule, He-C 6350.14 (c) through (f). 

4. Reporting 
The Contractor shall: 
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4.1. Provide copies of the physical examination report in Section 2.6.6 to the Departments 
referral source at discharge, in accordance with HIPM and all required releases. 

4.2. Provide copies of all.educational reports/summaries during the youth's stay at the facility. 

4.3. Maintain daily documentation on youth, to be submitted weekly to the Division's referring 
staff, which shall include, but not be limited to: 
4.3.1. Supervision; 

4.3.2. Progress report completed by the teacher; 

4.3.3. Behavior, including peer interaction and crisis management; 

4.3.4. Nutrition; and 

4.3.5. Youth's overall progress. 

4.4. Submit an annual report detailing the outcome results of all items in Section 3.3 and 
forward to the Department's DCYF Program Specialist by the second week in July of 
each state fiscal year (July 1" to June 30'"). 

4.5. Submit an incident report to the referring JPPO and/or CPSW within 1-3 business days 
to report any relevant situations where a youth absconds, gets arrested, or is assaultive. 

4.6. Submit weekly progress reports no later than 5:00 P .M. on the second business day 
following the weekend. 

5. Definitions 
CBAT - Community Based Acute Treatment 

CHINS - Children In Need of Services 

CPR - Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation 

CPSW - Child Protective Services Worker. 

DCYF - Division for Children, Youth and Families 

DEPARTMENT - Department of Health and Human Services 

DHHS - Department of Health and Human Services 

DOE - Department of Education 

EPSDT - Early Periodic.Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment 

FTE - Full-time Equivalent 

HIPAA- Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

IEP - Individual Education Plan 

JPPO - Juvenile Probation and Parole Officer 

NCIC - National Crime Information Center 

PCP - Primary Care Physician 

PREA.,. Prison Rape Elimination Act 
Becket Academy, Inc., dba 
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RN Registered Nurse 

a ., 
TITLE 1, PART D ,- U.S. Department of Education, Part D .- Prevention and Intervention 

Programs for Children and Youth who are Neglected, Delinquent, or At­
Risk 
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment 

A -
1) The State shall pay the contractor an amount not lo exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price 

Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. 

1.1. This contract is funded with funds from the Fosler Care Program, Trtle IV-E. Catalog of 
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.658, Federal Award ldentillcallon Number (FAIN) 
#1701NHFOST and Medicaid. 
• Other Funds from local education agency. 
• General Funds 

1.2. The Contractor agrees lo provide the services ln Exhibit A, Scope of Services In compliance 
with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded 
contractor's current and/or future funding. 

2) Payment for said services shall be made subject lo the following conditions: 

2.1. Guaranteed payment for a cumulative total of twelve (12) beds, per day, whether or not those 
beds are filled. 

2.1 •. 1. 

\1\~\11 1' 2.1.2. 

\~ 'f" 2.1.3. ,,,,, 

The twelve (12) beds are not required to be at the same location or with the same 
Contractor. These beds may be located at two (2) or more sites and'with two (2) or 
more Contractor's throughout the State of New Hampshire. 

The Contractor shall provide a minimum of twelve (12) to sixteen (16) beds statewide 
which shall be available for male and female youth. 

The Department reserves the right to approve an application less than twelve (12) per 
program or more than sixteen (16) beds should the program model meet the 
population needs. 

2.1.4. Notwithstanding Section 2. 1., reimbursement will be made on a child per day basis, 
seven (7) days per week, 365 days per year. 

2.1.5. The daily reimbursement rates shall be as follows: 

2.1.5.1. Residential for IEP eligible youth, $359.42 per day; 

2.1.5.2. Education for IEP eligible youth shall be billed to the youth's sending 
school by the Contractor; 

2.1.5.3. Residential Non-IEP eligible youth, $359.42 per day; and 

2.1.5.4. Education for Non-IEP eligible youth, $161.00 per day. 

2.2. The Contractor will return the Board and Care invoice provided by the Department for 
reimbursement. Invoice will be submitted to the Medicaid F1Scal Agent, at the following 
address: 

https://buslness.nh.gov/bebfpaqes/index.aspx 
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An authorized representative of the Contractor must sign requests for payment. Payment 
requests may be submitted bi~weekly, but at a minimum must be submitted monthly for 
services specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, which incurred in the prior month. 

2.3. The invoice must include the date, and a brief description of the work completed in 
accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services. 

2.4. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Exhibit A, Scope of 
Services. 

2.5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each 
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. 
Contractors will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and 
services. 

2.6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form 
P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date. 

2.7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified 
in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B. 

2.8. Notwithstanding anything ta the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this 
Contract may be withheld, in whale or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or 
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have 
not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

2.9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited ta adjusting 
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits 
within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may 
be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of 
the Governor and Executive Council. 
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Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor 
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible 
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and 
agrees as follows: · · · 

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility 
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and 
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures. 

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by 
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by 
the Department. 

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor 
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all 
information necessary to support an eligibility delermination and such other information as the 
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation 
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require. 

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as 
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out 
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair 
hearing in accordance with Department regulations. 

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or 
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or 
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detaUed in Exhibit A of this 
Contract The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is 
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employmenfof any kind were offered or received by 
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor. 

' 
6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any 

other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the pa~ies 
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for 
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract 
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided 
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the 
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the· individual is eligible for such services. 

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services 
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate 
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a 
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party 
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final 
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used 
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs. or has received payment 
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals 
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to: 
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be estabflshed; 
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in 

excess of costs; 
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7 .3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make 

such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is 
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to 
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services 
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at 
any time during the period of retention of records established herein. 

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE ANO CONFIDENTIALITY: 

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor 
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period: 
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs 

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all 
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be 
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and 
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and 
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as 
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of 
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the 
Department 

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of 
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and 
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records 
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain 
payment for such services. 

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the 
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services. 

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the 
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments. and Non 
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, 
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as 
they pertain to financial compliance audits. 
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the 

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their 
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to 
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is 
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state 
or federal audit exceptions and shall return ta the Department, all payments made under the 
Contract ta which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an 
exception. 

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected 
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not 
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of 
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to 
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes 
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract, and provided further, that 
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not 
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with 
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his 
attorney or guardian. 

oe.'27114 
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in 
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever. 

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following 
times if requested by the Department. 
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of 

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and 
. containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to 
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form 
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department. 

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term 
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall 
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal 
and other information required by the Department. 

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the 
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation 
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, 
by the term~ of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or 
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the 
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as 
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such 
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. 

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared 
during or resulting from the performance or the services of the Contract shall include the following 
statement: 
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State 

of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part 
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or 
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or 
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production, 
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials 
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, 
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without 
prior written approval from DHHS. 

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities 
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, 
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers 
pursuant lo laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the 
operation of the facility or the provision of, the services at such facility. If any governmental license or 
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, 
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and 
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall 
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and 
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by­
laws and regulations. , 

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has 
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or 

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Conlra<:tor lniUals ~ 
""'"" Page 3 of 5 Dale t {)} '.l.o / I 1 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit C 

Am\ ., 
more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the 
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees 
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an 
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non­
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the 
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption. 
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http:llwww.ojp.usdojlabout/ocrlpdfs/cert.pdf. 

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to 
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin 
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure 
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to its programs. 

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor EmployeeWhistleblower Protections: The 
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48 
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000) · 

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF 
WHISTLEBLOWER_RIGHTS (SEP 2013) 

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whisUeblower rights 
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at 
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 
112-239) and FAR 3.908. 

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce, 
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section 
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation. 

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all 
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold. 

19. Subcontrai:tors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with 
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, 
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to 
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractors ability to perform the delegated 
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if 
the subcontractors performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual 
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compfiance 
with those conditions. 
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following: 
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractors ability lo perform the activities, before delegating 

the function 
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting 

responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractors 
performance is not adequate 

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis 
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19.4: Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and 

responsibilities, and when the subcontracto(s perfonnance will be reviewed 
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts. 

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are id.entffied, the Contractor shall 
take corrective action. 

DEFINITIONS 
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be 
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance 
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders. 

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services. 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is 
entitted '.Financial Management Guidelines• and which contains the regulations governing the financial 
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds. 

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a fonn or fonns 
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible 
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the tenns and conditions of the Contract and setting forth 
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract. 

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that 
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the 
Contract. 

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are 
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as 
they may be amended or revised from the time to time. 

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative 
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire 
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and 
federal regulations promulgated thereunder. 

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under thjs 
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services. 
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as 
follows: 
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, 
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are 
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, Including any subsequent changes to the 
appropriation or availabillty of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that 
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement 
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall 
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event 
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right 
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, 
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such 
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other 
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, 
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable. 

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following 
language; 

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the 
Agreement. 

10.2 In the event of ea~y termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, 
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not 
limited to, Identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement 
and establishes a prcx;ess to meet those needs. 

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed Information to 
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the 
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan arid shall provide ongoing 
communication and revisions of the Transttion Plan to the Stale as requested. 

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services 
under the Agreement are transitioned to having ~ervices delivered by another entity including 
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of 
services In the T ransttion Plan. 

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the 
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted 
to the State as described above. 

3. Extension: 
The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to four (4) additional years, subject to the 
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and 
Executive Council. 
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The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Tltle V, Subtitle D; 41 
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

ALTERNATIVE 1- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ·CONTRACTORS 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub­
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State 
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for 
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a 
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False 
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or 
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should 
send it to: 

Commissioner 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 
129 Pleasant Street. 
Concord, NH 03301-6505 

., 

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's 
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
prohibition; 

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about 
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; · 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation. and employee assistance programs; and 
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 

occurring in the workplace; 
1.3. Making ii a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of 

employment under the grant, the employee will 
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer·in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug 

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; 

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten palendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant 
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 
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~ -
1.6. 

1.7. 

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the 
identification number(s} of each affected grant; 
Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted 
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended; or · 

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, 
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 

Making a good faith effort to continue Jo maintain a drug-free workplace through 
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. 

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s} for the performance .of work done in 
connection with the specmc grant 

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code} (list each location) 

Check a if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 

Contractor Name: 

10/10/11-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
. Exhibit E 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

~ -
The. Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS 

Programs (indicate applicable.program covered): 
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A 
•child Support Enforcement Program under IHie IV-D 

··social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX 
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX 
•community· Services Block Grant under Title VI 
•child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to. 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency,. a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention 
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). 

2. If any funds other tha'n Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 'of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention subijrantee or sub­
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submtt Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying, in accordance wtth its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibtt E-1.) 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subijrants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Tttle 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject lo a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 

Date' ' 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit F 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION 
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

~ -
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmflnt, 
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's 
representative, as identified in Sections 1. 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following 
Certification: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the 

certification set out below. 

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial 
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an 
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS) 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary 
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in 
this transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective 
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default .. 

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to 
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns 
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered , 
transaction; "participant," "person," 'primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and 
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the 
attached definitions. 

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred. suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS. 

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will inclu9e the 
clause tilled ·certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded 
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties). 

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records 
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent 
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction 

· for cause or default. 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 

principals: 
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) 
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

11.3. are not presenUy indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b) 
of this certification; and 

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
cer1ification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as 

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of tts knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such 

prospective participant shall attacti an explanation to this proposal (contra9_t). 

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will 
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions; without modification in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower ti~r covered transactions. 

Date 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
ExhlbltG 

~ .. ., 
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO 

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND 
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable 
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include: 

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits 
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in 
the delivery of services or benef~s. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act 
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; 

·the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by 
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this 
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or 
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal 
Employment Opportunity Plan requiremerns; 

·the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity); 

·the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of 
services or benefrts, in any program or activity; 

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1~90 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits 
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabiltties in employment, State and local 
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilfties, and transportation; 

·the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; 

·the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include 
employment discrimination; 

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies 
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community 
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making 
criteria for partnerships1·with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; 

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based 
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization 
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for 
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against 
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activtties in connection with federal grants and contracts. 

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the 
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for 
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or 
debarment. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of 
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex 
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to 
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and 
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. 

' The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: · 

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contract~r agrees to comply with the provisions 
indicated above. .-_.··'."t''Z'" 

Contractor Name: /!,ec.lce·t ~ • ,P,. c., 

l:J!.~r~· Date Name: 
Tltle: 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE 

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 
(Act). requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or 
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education; 
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either 
directiy or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The 
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by 
_Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faciltties used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure 
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to 
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply 
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994. 

CIJJOHHS/110713 
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New Hampshire Department of HeaHh and Human Services 

Exhibit I 

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

~ -
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to 
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and 
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business 
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that 
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered 
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

(1) Definitions. 

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 ofTitle 45, Code 
of Federal Regulations. 

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations. · 

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" 
in 45 CFR S~cti6n'it611.501. 

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR 
Section 164.501. 

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations' 
. iri4S'eFR Section 164.501. 

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009. 

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. 

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "indiVidual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103 
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 
CFR Section 164.501 (g). 

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

k. "Protected Heal!h Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health 
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by 
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR 
Section 164.103. 

m. "Secretarv• shail mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 
his/her designee. 

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected 
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto. 

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not 
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, 
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by 
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards 
Institute. -

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 
established under45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the 
HITE CH 
Act. 

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Heaffh Information. 

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health 
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under 
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all 
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit 
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: 
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; 
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below, or 
Ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered 

Entity. 

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a 
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) 
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHf will be h_eld confidentially and 
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was 
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business 
Associate, in accordance with the HIPM Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification 
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained 
knowledge of such breach. 

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to 
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a 
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying 
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and 
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business 
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all 
remedies. 

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to 
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of 
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. 

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate. 

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately 
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected 
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured 
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the 
protected health information of the Covered Entity. 

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes 
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be 
limited to: 

c. 

d. 

e. 

312014 

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the 
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification; 

o The unauthorized persdn used the protected health information or to whom the 
disclosure was made; 

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed 
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been 

mitigated. 

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the 
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the 
Covered Entity. 

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and 
Breach Notification Rule. 

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books 
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or 
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for 
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPM and the Privacy and 
Security Rule. 

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have 
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same 

·restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including 
ihe duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity 
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate 
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI 

Exhlbil I Contractor Initials~ 
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such 
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard 
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of 
protected health information. 

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, 
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all 
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure 
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine 
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, 
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the 
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the 
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an 
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record 
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for 
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its 

· obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. · 

i. 

j. 

k. 

I. 

312014 

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to 
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an· 
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 
164.528. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a 
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available 
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations 
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 
Section 164.528. 

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI 
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the 
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the 
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business 
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify 
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. 

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the 
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI 
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the 
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or 
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in 
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the 
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those 
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business M 
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the 
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to 
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. 

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its 
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's 
use or disclosure of PHI. · 

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation 
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or 
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity shali promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or 
disdosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of 
PHI. . 

(5) Termination for Cause 

(6) 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

312014 

In .addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard tenrns and conditions (P-37) of this 
. Agrej;ment the Covered Entity may immediately lenrninate the Agreement upon Covered 
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate 
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately 
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity 
determines that neither tenrninalion nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the 
violation to the Secretary. 

Miscellaneous 

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, 
shall have the same meaning as those tenrns in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended 
from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to 
a Section in the Privacy and SecuritY Rule means the Section as In effect or as 
amended. 

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is · 
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered 
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and 
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. 

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights 
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. 

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved 
to penrnit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ~ 
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Am\ -
e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or 
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the 
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. 

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or 
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the 
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the 
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I. 

Department of Health and Human Services Bee.Ice.+ Ac11:Jr.-. ··JI J,, c._. 

The State Name of 

Signatu Au orized Representative Signature i\uthorized Representative 

jos,.. ~ {2.~s--., 
Name of AC!horized Representative 

0 ,'rt_J;,. D c 'r f 
Tiiie of Authorized Representative · 

Ul31t7 
Date 

312014 

~ T- Wi1/-frr-
Name of Authoriz~ Refresentative 

r?-u.~ 
Title of Authorized Representative 

Date 
ID/ 1u } 17 
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~ ., 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY 

. ACT IFFATA! COMPLIANCE . 

The Federal Funding Accounlability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual 
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awardecj on or after October 1, 2010, to report on 
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the 
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in. a total award equal to or over 
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. 
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the 
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any 
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: 
1. Name of entity 
2. Amount of award 
3. Funding agency 
4. NAICS code for contracts I CFDA program number for grants 
5. Program source 
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action 
7. Location of the entity ~ 
8. Principle place of performance 
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#) 
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: 

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those 
revenues are greater than $25M annually and 

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which 
the award or award amendment is made. · 
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 cif the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, 
and 2 ,CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees 
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions 
execute the following Certification: 
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outrined above to the NH 
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal 
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. 

Date 

CUIDHHS/110713 

Contractor Name: 

Name: 
Title: 

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding 
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FORM A 

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the 
below listed questions are true and accurate. 

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: Ol852.S2. i'"j 

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization 
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, 
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual 
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts. subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or 
cooperative agreements? 

.../NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here 

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following: 

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your 
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986? 

if NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here 

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following: 

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or 
organization are as follows: 

Name:· 

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

CU/OHHS/110713 

Amount: 

Amount: 

Amount: 

Amount: 

Amount: 
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~ -
DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

1. Confidential Information: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this 
RFP, the Department's Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by the 
State of NH - created, receiv.ed from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and 
disposition is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to 
Personal Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable Information (Pit), Federal Tax Information (FTI), 
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential 
information. 

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected, 
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations inclu_de: 

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the 
information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure 
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (Le., tape, disk, paper, etc.). 

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or 
store Department confidential information where applicable. 

2.3. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored.on portable media, e.g., laptops, USB · 
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current industry 
standards and best practices for st.rong encryption. 

2.4. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can 
impact State of NH systems-and/or Department confidential information for coniractor provided systems. 

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for Its employees, contractors and sub~ntractors in support 
of protecting Department confidential information 

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the 
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional emaij 
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer seeurity incident, or 
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the 
State of New Hampshire network. 

2.6.1. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of 
Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security lncidenr shall have the same meaning "Computer 
Security Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publ_ication 800.01, Computer Security Incident 
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce. 

Breach notifications will be sent to the following email addresses: 

2.6.1.1. DHHSChieftnformationOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov 

2.6.1.2. DHHSlnforroationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 

2.7. lf the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its sub-contractor systems), the 
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract 
termination; and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 
vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations. 
When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered 
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure 

CUJDHHS/032917 
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deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor will 
document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the 
Department upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data 
has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professional standards for 
retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction. 

2.8. If the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for 
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that 
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a 
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements. 

3. The vendor will work with the Department to sign and comply w~h all applicable State of New Hampshire and 
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer 
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will 
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being 
authorized. 

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103, the vendor will 
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the 
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement. 

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to 
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time 
frame at the Departments discretion wnh agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the 
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Department and the vendor changes. 
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data 
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from 
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership me.Tiber within the Department. . 

CU/DHHS/032917 
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